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          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SANDERS:  Good

          3  morning.  The Committee on Technology in Government

          4  will begin.  I am, of course, not Gale Brewer.

          5  Council Member Brewer is stuck next door in a

          6  hearing.

          7                 I am Council Member James Sanders,

          8  Jr., and she has requested that I start this

          9  hearing.  She is very concerned about your time, and

         10  respects that.

         11                 With that as an understanding, we are

         12  going to call the Administration to come before us,

         13  and after the Administration speaks, I suspect that

         14  Council Member Brewer will be here, and at that time

         15  she will make her opening statement, but we will

         16  start with the Administration.

         17                 As you sit down, if you are kind

         18  enough to introduce yourselves and to put it on the

         19  record, I would appreciate it.

         20                 MS. LADER:  Good morning Council

         21  Member Sanders.

         22                 My name is Wendy Lader, Vice

         23  President of Telecommunications Policy at the New

         24  York City Economic Development Corporation, or EDC.

         25                 I am also joined by my colleagues Gil
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          2  Quiniones, Senior Vice President of Energy and

          3  Telecommunications at EDC, and Agostino Congemi,

          4  Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel at the New

          5  York City Department of Information Technology and

          6  Telecommunications, or DoITT.

          7                 We appreciate the opportunity to

          8  comment on Intro. 625- A, which creates a temporary

          9  task force to study how affordable broadband access

         10  can be made available to all New York City

         11  residents, non- profit organizations and businesses.

         12

         13                 You have asked whether such a Task

         14  Force is necessary and whether its Mission Statement

         15  should be modified, and we would like to explain the

         16  concerns we have with the proposal.

         17                 Just last month as you know, we

         18  testified before you about the Mayor's

         19  Telecommunications Plan, which was released on April

         20  22nd, 2005.  That Plan was an effort of EDC, DoITT,

         21  and the Small Business Services to identify critical

         22  telecommunications issues facing New York City, and

         23  devise recommendations to address those problems.

         24                 The three agencies convened a 14-

         25  member group of experts, called the
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          2  Telecommunications Policy Advisory Group, which

          3  includes a broad cross- spectrum of academics, non-

          4  profits, telecommunications companies, and

          5  government officials.

          6                 Several of the  Advisory Group

          7  members were, in fact, recommended to us by the City

          8  Council's Technology in Government Committee.  We

          9  also reached out to another thirty experts from many

         10  different sectors for input.  Again, a number of

         11  these experts were recommendations by the City

         12  Council.

         13                 The Advisory Group and outside

         14  experts provided significant input in identifying

         15  the City's telecommunications problems and defining

         16  our 21 recommendations.

         17                 Many of our 21 recommendations

         18  examine how we can provide affordable broadband

         19  access across New York City.  The Plan addresses

         20  which areas in New York City do not, or might not,

         21  have broadband service.  It sets forth new

         22  initiatives to bring broadband to those areas by

         23  working with current broadband providers.  It also

         24  explores ways to stimulate demand by educating small

         25  businesses and non- profits about the benefits of
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          2  broadband.

          3                 While our Plan focuses on uses by

          4  businesses and non- profits, several initiatives

          5  also address the expansion of broadband use within

          6  residential neighborhoods.  For example, we are

          7  developing a plan to incorporate broadband into

          8  EDC's redevelopment projects, including both

          9  residential and commercial buildings.

         10                 The City agencies are also looking at

         11  ways to make public buildings and properties more

         12  widely available for new broadband infrastructure,

         13  and we are working with Business Improvement

         14  Districts and Local Development Corporations to

         15  facilitate the creation of wireless hotspots.

         16                 We will also explore how NYSERNet's

         17  dark fiber network can provide broadband access to

         18  non- profits and the surrounding communities.

         19                 Additionally, after last month's

         20  hearing, we heeded your call to examine residential

         21  use more closely, and will be working with those

         22  agencies that address residential broadband access,

         23  such as the New York City Department of Housing,

         24  Preservation and Development, and the New York City

         25  Housing Authority.  We plan to coordinate with those

                                                            8

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  agencies to help support pilots or new initiatives

          3  that are bringing broadband to residents.  We will

          4  be doing the same with non- profits that are

          5  involved in providing broadband in affordable

          6  housing.

          7                 EDC and our sister agencies are

          8  concerned that, if a new Task Force is established,

          9  it would duplicate much of the work of the existing

         10  Advisory Group.  This group put months of work into

         11  developing the Telecommunications Plan, and will

         12  stay intact and continue to work on the Plan's

         13  implementation.

         14                 As we go forward, we anticipate

         15  expanding the membership of the Advisory Group to

         16  draw in additional expertise of perspectives.

         17                 Additionally, we will be asking our

         18  Advisory Group members to put forward any new

         19  recommendations that should also be part of our

         20  Plan.

         21                 Rather than start a new Task Force,

         22  the City would like to focus on the implementation

         23  of the Mayor's Plan.  We are now finalizing an

         24  Implementation Plan, which will detail the

         25  deliverable steps, and deadlines for implementing
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          2  each of the 21 recommendations.

          3                 The City agencies are eager to begin

          4  implementing the Plan's recommendations, including

          5  those for broadband buildout, and we are taking

          6  steps to that end.  We are concerned that a new Task

          7  Force will result in two possibly overlapping

          8  efforts, spread our finite resources thin, and delay

          9  our activities moving forward.

         10                 Instead, we propose giving the

         11  existing Administration Plan time to yield results.

         12                 We would like to work with the City

         13  Council in shaping these efforts.  Ultimately, we

         14  believe it would be far better for the welfare of

         15  the City to unite our efforts to ensure that New

         16  York City's telecommunications services are more

         17  robust and more widely available.

         18                 Once again, I appreciate the

         19  opportunity to appear before you, and we would be

         20  happy to answer any questions you may have.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         23  thank you very much for that.

         24                 Of course, the main goal of this

         25  legislation is to ensure that broadband is
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          2  affordable for all New Yorkers.

          3                 What is the Administration's position

          4  on ensuring that broadband is affordable for all New

          5  Yorkers?

          6                 MS. LADER:  We absolutely agree that

          7  that should be the goal, that broadband should be

          8  available to everyone who wants to have it, and that

          9  it should be available at an affordable price.

         10                 Our Plan seeks to arrive at that goal

         11  by promoting competition among existing providers,

         12  by spurring them to provide services to areas that

         13  do not yet have it, and by seeking new technologies,

         14  and by creating incentives for new technologies to

         15  enter the market because we have seen that

         16  competition does serve to bring down the prices.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  While

         18  competition, of course, is a good thing, in New York

         19  City we have not seen this competition that you

         20  speak of in terms of the service providers.

         21                 How can we encourage the competition

         22  which will bring down the prices, or may rather,

         23  bring down the prices?

         24                 MS. LADER:  Well, one of the

         25  provisions within the plan is to make the city's
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          2  infrastructure available for broadband services, and

          3  we have already started to do that with the cities

          4  light poles.  It is our belief that by making this

          5  infrastructure available to more providers, that

          6  more providers will be interested in provisioning

          7  services, and I will defer to Agostino Congemi on

          8  how that has been working.

          9                 MR. CONGEMI:  Sure, one of the things

         10  we did with the light pole initiative which was make

         11  the cities light poles available for leasing

         12  wireless telecommunications equipment.  That

         13  equipment could be available to provide wireless

         14  Internet services.

         15                 One of the things we did was we took

         16  a look at the City's demographics, we dedicated I

         17  believe it is 13 community districts of the City

         18  where there is a fairly low penetration rate on the

         19  phone usage, so those are the areas of the City

         20  where you have many of the lower income levels in

         21  the City, and in those areas we essentially have

         22  priced the light poles at $10.00 a pole, which is

         23  extraordinarily cheap, and in many ways we believe

         24  that has allowed companies to consider using the

         25  city infrastructure at a fairly inexpensive rate in

                                                            12

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  order to provide those services.

          3                 There are still many technological

          4  obstacles to providing wireless Internet services in

          5  those communities that I can get into if you would

          6  like.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well, let us

          8  pursue that for a second.

          9                 With the speeds of the broadband and

         10  the technologies going, who can keep up with this

         11  stuff?

         12                 How do we ensure that New York City,

         13  no matter what it chooses, does not buy a pink

         14  elephant?  How do we ensure that we are going to be

         15  adaptable to this century and beyond?

         16                 MR. CONGEMI:  That is an excellent

         17  point, and that is one of the reasons that we are

         18  studying what some of the other cities are doing.

         19                 It is very difficult to make a bet on

         20  a particular technology.  Telecommunications is a

         21  very moving world, our procurement efforts often

         22  take a while, take a long time in order for us to

         23  plan to develop an RFP, to build out an RFP.

         24                 People were not even speaking about

         25  Wi- Fi five years ago, and now Wi- Fi is the 80211
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          2  standard of Wi- Fi, is considered already old news.

          3  On the other hand, the new types of standards that

          4  are talked about, the standards that would allow for

          5  wireless Internet over longer ranges of distance,

          6  Wi- FI today only allows for approximately about 300

          7  feet from the antenna on two sets

          8  of--.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  I hear there

         10  is some technology that can go five miles now, I

         11  have been told.

         12                 MR. CONGEMI:  And even, perhaps even

         13  20 miles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Wow.

         15                 MR. CONGEMI:  And there is one

         16  company that has set up on the top of the Empire

         17  State Building, and they plan on offering that type

         18  of service.  Their business model is geared towards

         19  smaller businesses, not to residential consumers

         20  yet.

         21                 I think in speaking to them, in order

         22  for them to actually run a profitable business, that

         23  is their first customer base right now but I am not

         24  sure if that will be the case in a year or two years

         25  from now, primarily, one of the reasons that I think
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          2  it is difficult to make a bet on a technology.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Let us go

          4  back to this legislation for a moment.

          5                 I am not sure if I am- let us put it

          6  in English, do you think that this legislation is

          7  needed?  If not, why not?  And, well, I will start

          8  there.

          9                 Do you think it is needed, and if

         10  not, why not?

         11                 MS. LADER:  We actually think that we

         12  have done the work that is being proposed in the

         13  legislation. So we do not think that it is

         14  necessary.

         15                 We had put together this

         16  Telecommunications Policy Advisory Group, which is

         17  very similar to the Task Force that is being

         18  proposed.  That Telecommunications Policy Advisory

         19  Group took a year to put this Plan together, which

         20  was just released two months ago, and we think it

         21  would delay our actions going forward, if there were

         22  duplicate task force put together.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well, one of

         24  the main points again in here is a question of

         25  affordable for all New Yorkers.  I would suggest
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          2  that, perhaps, your task force does not have that as

          3  a prime mission, is that true?

          4                 MS. LADER:  The Task Force had

          5  initially looked at how to provide services to small

          6  business and non- profits because those areas were

          7  identified as the problem.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Could you

          9  say that again?

         10                 MS. LADER:  Yes, the Task Force has

         11  initially looked at how to provide service to non-

         12  profits and small businesses because there were six

         13  areas in New York that were identified as problem

         14  areas, as areas that were not served by broadband,

         15  or less served by broadband than the rest of New

         16  York, and those areas tended to be commercial areas.

         17    So the TPAG, the advisory group, really focused on

         18  those particular areas, and not only residential.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Do you know

         20  offhand what are those six areas?

         21                 MS. LADER:  Long Island City, parts

         22  of Long Island City, parts of DUMBO, Hunts Point,

         23  Sunset Park, parts of Williamsburg.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Very

         25  interesting, you were saying?
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          2                 I am sorry, I interrupted you.

          3                 MS. LADER:  So the residential areas

          4  are served 100 percent by cable modem service, and

          5  about 90 percent by Verizon's DSL.  So that was not

          6  the focus of the report.  However, that is not to

          7  say that some of the recommendations do not also

          8  address residential areas.

          9                 We have a number of recommendations

         10  in the Plan that will effect provision of service

         11  throughout New York, and as we mentioned, we are

         12  willing to add new provisions, new ideas, in the

         13  Plan.  We have already added some provisions to

         14  address residential uses, such as working with NYCHA

         15  and with HPD, to expand pilots and initiatives to

         16  bring broadband to affordable housing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Now I

         18  noticed that, and this is my last point before our

         19  Chair takes over, and I am sure she has an opening

         20  statement in there, which she certainly can make but

         21  I am noticing that- I am not hearing much about

         22  residential neighborhoods in your thinking, and the

         23  Council as a whole has a real feeling to make sure

         24  that it is affordable, that you are reaching the

         25  lowest rung, economically, of New Yorkers, that we
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          2  are ensuring that there is one New York City, and

          3  that all of us can at least partake.  I am not

          4  hearing that really from you, perhaps it is in your

          5  written document and I will look at it more but I

          6  just want to alert you and, perhaps, encourage you

          7  that this point of affordability for the residents

          8  of New York, especially for those who find

          9  themselves economically shut out of the great- how

         10  New York City is prospering, there is a big push to

         11  ensure that there is an even playing field, and

         12  broadband technology has to be one of the greatest

         13  ladders that we have created in this.

         14                 So I just wanted to alert you,

         15  without tripping again, of this, and encourage you

         16  that every time you come before any council, any

         17  committee, you are going to hear the same theme

         18  coming at you again and again.  Get ready.

         19                 MS. LADER:  Thank you, we appreciate

         20  those comments, and we certainly want to work with

         21  you in making that a focus for our plan and our task

         22  force.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well, I want

         24  to- I personally will stop here because when I am in

         25  the presence of such a giant, I often get tongue

                                                            18

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  twisted, and it is because- I was doing well before

          3  you came here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You are doing

          5  great.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  But you just

          7  outshine all of us, Gale.

          8                 Councilwoman Gale Brewer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Not at all.  I

         10  thank Council Member James Sanders, from what I call

         11  the Rockaways, I know he has a larger district but

         12  that is certainly an area that we want to make sure

         13  does received what you are working on.  And I want

         14  to be clear to thank you for the work that you have

         15  done on the report, and to say that we do want to

         16  work together.

         17                 Why we are pushing this is because

         18  there is, I think, in government, if you keep moving

         19  on something that happens faster, and as we watch

         20  around the country, we can see from daily experience

         21  and daily readings that there is a lot of interest

         22  in this ability to have low cost broadband in

         23  different places.

         24                 One of my questions is, and I have

         25  read your testimony very quickly, I was next door
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          2  talking about fair trade coffee, so I have to switch

          3  gears here.  One of the questions I have is what is

          4  your timetable in terms of implementation?

          5                 I know you have been talking as a

          6  result of discussions in terms of more residential,

          7  also thinking about working with NYSERNet, there are

          8  a lot of possibilities here.  But what kind of

          9  timetable are you thinking about in terms of really

         10  building out a structure that would be what we all

         11  want, which is a goal for low cost availability?

         12                 MS. LADER:  We have said previously,

         13  two to five years, and I know that is a very broad

         14  timetable.  We are working actually on an

         15  implementation plan which we will share with you

         16  when it is finalized.  It has specific deliverables

         17  and dates, timelines, for each of our goals.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, and what

         19  would be included in terms of a rollout?

         20                 Are you talking about wireless,

         21  working with the MTA, thinking about some of the

         22  industrial zones, what kind of thought process in

         23  terms of some of this rollout?

         24                 Because it is a big city, it is very

         25  different than Philadelphia, it is very different
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          2  than Seattle, it is very different than Oklahoma,

          3  and one of the issues is we have these different

          4  kinds of neighborhoods.  They have hi- rise, very

          5  challenging, to the individuals who might be wiring

          6  Philadelphia or Seattle.  It is a very different

          7  kind of building, so, how are you thinking about-

          8  does your Task Force in the implementation plan that

          9  you have address some of these more challenging

         10  issues?

         11                 MS. LADER:  I would say that our

         12  first priority is focused on the six areas that were

         13  identified in the report, and we have met with all

         14  the BID's, and the LDC's in those areas, and now

         15  what we are trying to do is really get hard facts,

         16  hard data on what the need for broadband services

         17  is; where is exists, where is does not exist so that

         18  we know what we are dealing with.

         19                 So far, what we have had is anecdotal

         20  evidence, we have not had hard and fast data, so

         21  that is our first goal.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  How can a task

         23  force focusing on bringing broadband to all

         24  residents and businesses-  what are some of the

         25  delays in terms of your advisory group?  Do you
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          2  think that two to five years is a- could we do it

          3  faster with an even more extensive advisory group?

          4                 We are really pushing because we feel

          5  like the other cities in this country are moving

          6  faster.

          7                 MS. LADER:  What we have is a tiered

          8  approach, so there are some goals that we hope to

          9  accomplish this year.

         10                 I would say about seven of the 21

         11  recommendations we hope to actually accomplish this

         12  year, and we have designated another seven for the

         13  next two to three years, obviously we cannot

         14  accomplish all 21 immediately.

         15                 So, what we have done is prioritized

         16  what we think the most immediate goals are.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, are you

         18  thinking about using all of the pole tops in your

         19  six areas?

         20                 I know this is something because

         21  right now, you only have anecdotal as to what is

         22  available, and you need to get the research but, I

         23  am just wondering if that is something that you are

         24  looking at?

         25                 MR. CONGEMI:  The pole tops represent
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          2  about 13 community districts of this city, where the

          3  poorest residents of this city happen to live

          4  primarily.

          5                 In any of those areas, the rental fee

          6  has been set at $10.00 which is 1/25th of say the

          7  prices in Manhattan.  So we are encouraging the six

          8  providers.

          9                 We also would work with any Internet

         10  service provider that would, perhaps, would want to

         11  have access to those poles, access to those areas,

         12  perhaps may have different ideas as to sections of

         13  the city where it may make sense, and we have the

         14  availability and the flexibility within the

         15  franchises to change the boundaries of Zone C so as

         16  to include perhaps some areas where there may be a

         17  need.

         18                 But what we need if for there to be

         19  an actual, at least initially, some kind of business

         20  case where a company is willing to make an

         21  investment.

         22                 One of the things I have found in

         23  talking to analysts, at least since the telecom

         24  bubble of`99 and 2000, is there is very little

         25  venture capital or capital money available for the
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          2  large telecommunications providers to invest in

          3  areas where they cannot show some kind of viability

          4  over some short term.  And I do not think it is the

          5  governments role to be that venture capital money

          6  for these companies.  We have seen a lot of that

          7  money whither away, and people's investments also

          8  hurt very badly. So we want to be smart about it,

          9  and I think there are some technological innovations

         10  on the horizon that would, perhaps, provide

         11  solutions that would be less expensive than

         12  the technologies that the current cities are relying

         13  on, which

         14  is 80211.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Do you have

         16  broadband adoption goals for the Advisory Group?  In

         17  other words, ways in which this particular advisory

         18  group has to move in a, sort of, calculated process?

         19    In other words, are there actual goals for when

         20  they are going to make certain decisions about-

         21  within the six, and then going beyond, et cetera,

         22  within the six areas?

         23                 MR. QUINIONES:  Currently, we do not

         24  have specific penetration rates or broadband

         25  adoption goals, at this point.
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          2                 We are- we plan to work with, Wendy

          3  Lader had mentioned, and based on the previous

          4  hearing that you held, we will be reaching out to

          5  the HPD, to the New York Housing Authority, and non-

          6  profits who are focusing in this area.

          7                 We have already met with One Economy,

          8  for example, to see what are the right deliverables

          9  and steps that we should take.

         10                 So we are not at that point yet but

         11  we have started the process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, one other

         13  question for Deputy Commissioner Congemi.

         14                 The questions is, do you know from

         15  basemap how many pole tops we have?  In other words,

         16  does your basemap information include all the pole

         17  tops that exist?

         18                 Just out of curiosity, is that some

         19  piece of information--?

         20                 MR. CONGEMI:  No, the poles are not

         21  mapped on the basemap, but there are approximately

         22  200,000 poles across the City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right.

         24                 MR. CONGEMI:  If you include traffic

         25  poles and light poles.  But, they are not mapped.

                                                            25

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  So that will be

          3  something that would have to be done?  Or is that

          4  done by the private sector if they want to--?

          5                 MR. CONGEMI:  The way we are- rather

          6  than map, because there is limitations on the number

          7  of poles that can be used during any particular

          8  reservation phase, is when the companies notify us

          9  as to the poles they want to use.

         10                 We are focusing on populating the map

         11  with the poles that the companies are selecting, as

         12  opposed to creating an inventory of the 200,000

         13  poles.  We think that would be cost prohibitive

         14  because in the initial phases, there are six

         15  companies. There may only be 1,800 poles because

         16  they are limited to 300 poles per reservation phase,

         17  so what we are going to do is map the 1,800 poles

         18  that they select rather than map all 200,000 poles.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, do you

         20  know if in other cities that is the approach that is

         21  being taken?

         22                 I know we always think we are more-

         23  we are different, and I just was wondering if there

         24  are other- I am trying to think of ways that we can

         25  move the process along, and if the companies are
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          2  doing the identifying, I guess that is the most cost

          3  effective.  I just do not know if that is the one

          4  that makes the process move any faster.

          5                 It is just one aspect to the whole

          6  process, but it is part of the inventory as opposed

          7  to the anecdotal.

          8                 MR. CONGEMI:  I am just speaking with

          9  my colleague here.  I believe San Francisco may have

         10  been mapping the poles.  I am not sure if mapping

         11  the poles though is the real obstacle here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  No, it is not.

         13                 MR. CONGEMI:  We have so many

         14  thousands of poles, essentially any area of the City

         15  that wants to be served, there is going to be a pole

         16  nearby that can be used.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  They are, it is

         18  everywhere, they are everywhere, okay.

         19                 I want to thank you.  I think that

         20  this at least brings dialog.  I do not know whether-

         21  I understand your objection to the legislation.  I

         22  think that the concept behind all of this is to be

         23  collaborative, but at the same time be a`nudge', and

         24  that is what we are trying to do here in the city

         25  council, but we will certainly work with you, and
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          2  figure out- I think we have the same goal, the same

          3  goal is accessible, very affordable broadband that

          4  can be available to businesses and to the residents,

          5  particularly in communities that have low income

          6  residents where the cost is very prohibitive for

          7  what is being offered was a somewhat non competitive

          8  opportunity here in the City of New York.

          9                 So, we look forward to continue to

         10  work with you.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. CONGEMI:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. QUINIONES:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Our next

         15  panelist is Greg Rhode.

         16                 We are also going to call Tim Lance

         17  to join us at the same panel.

         18                 Greg Rohde is president of e-

         19  Copernicus, he is the president, and it is a

         20  telecommunications consulting firm providing

         21  broadband around the United States, and I am sure he

         22  will talk to you about it.

         23                 He is a former Assistant Secretary of

         24  Commerce for communications information at the

         25  National Telecommunications and Information
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          2  Administration, well known in Washington.  His

          3  public service began in 1988 with U.S. Senator from

          4  North Dakota, Byron Dorgan, somebody whom I know,

          5  and he comes from North Dakota but has masked that

          6  very well, and is now from Washington, D.C.  I am a

          7  big supporter of North Dakota, please do not take

          8  that any other way, and we also want to thank Tim

          9  Lance for being here, and he will introduce himself.

         10                 Thank you very much, go right ahead.

         11                 MR. ROHDE:  Thank you very much.

         12                 It is a real pleasure to be here, and

         13  thank you for inviting me to testify.  It is always

         14  good to see you, and I appreciate your support for

         15  my hometown of North Dakota, my home state.

         16                 I really want to commend you, first

         17  of all, Councilwoman for your leadership, and really

         18  pushing, and as you say, nudging on the issue of

         19  trying to find affordable broadband access.  It is a

         20  very worthy endeavor for city government despite the

         21  fact that most broadband policy and regulation

         22  occurs outside of your jurisdiction.  It occurs

         23  mostly at the federal and state level.  There are

         24  still, however, things which a city government can

         25  do in order to try and achieve this goal.
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          2                 One of the first things to keep in

          3  mind is that the telecommunications industry is very

          4  much a competitive industry.            New York is

          5  actually very blessed with a great deal of options

          6  when it comes to local exchange service, mobile

          7  phone service, and with respect to broadband

          8  service, New York is much like the rest of the

          9  country, in that broadband still largely remains a

         10  duopoly level of service.

         11                 So as you examine ways in which to

         12  pursue your goal of providing affordable broadband

         13  access, I think one of the tools that you need to

         14  look at is how do you try to stimulate competitive

         15  entry in the broadband market here in New York?  And

         16  there is a number of ways in which you can do that.

         17                 A second thing that New York can look

         18  at is, there is nothing in federal law, federal law

         19  will prohibit you from regulating price on

         20  telecommunications services, prohibits New York from

         21  erecting barriers to entry for telecommunications

         22  services but there is no prohibition at all in New

         23  York to consider maybe developing its own universal

         24  service system.  For example, if you consider that

         25  you needed certain parts of the city, or certain low
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          2  income individuals, or certain small businesses that

          3  needed some kind of subsidy assistance, New York is

          4  not prohibited in any way to  develop any such

          5  system.

          6                 Before getting into some comments on

          7  your legislation, I would like to make a couple of

          8  comments if you permit me--.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Yes.

         10                 MR. ROHDE: -- on the recent report

         11  that you were just discussing with the

         12  Administration.

         13                 I have had a chance to review this,

         14  and in short, my judgement is this report has the

         15  potential of becoming an excellent starting point

         16  for a very effective strategy here in New York.

         17  Obviously, the devil is going to be in the details

         18  and in the way it is implemented.

         19                 The report identifies a number of

         20  very and important and ambitious goals, such as

         21  trying to create a diversified collocation

         22  facilities, trying to utilize the city properties as

         23  a way to facilitate competitive entries, such as

         24  wireless antenna locations, using the redevelopment

         25  projects as launch pads, and also focusing on
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          2  innovative technologies.  These are all very worthy

          3  and very important goals.

          4                 Where the report falls short, if you

          5  will, is in that it is tentative in how the City

          6  intends to utilize the tools that it does have to

          7  achieve these goals, and that really is where the

          8  work lies ahead.

          9                 A couple of examples of where you

         10  could look at that.  There was some discussion

         11  earlier about the City of New York is currently

         12  providing access to telephone poles and light poles

         13  for competitive entrance, particularly in the

         14  wireless base.

         15                 One of the biggest challenges for new

         16  wireless technology is in being able to access

         17  places to locate antennas. One area of the City of

         18  New York could look at is to examine what exactly

         19  can clear policy be established, what directives

         20  could the Mayor give to municipally owned projects,

         21  as well as privately owned buildings to assist new

         22  entrants to know they can have assistance in

         23  locating antennas.  Constructing a wireless network

         24  can be very complicated, and often, even though you

         25  may have 200,000 light poles in the city, those
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          2  light poles may not be as sufficient for some of the

          3  particular wireless technologies.  You may need to

          4  go further than that.

          5                 Another thing is to see ways in which

          6  the City could leverage its influence and authority

          7  over private landlords, and to find ways to develop

          8  an effective policy that allows competitive entrance

          9  to get access to buildings.

         10                 Another way that the city could look

         11  at is examine its own purchasing power.  The City is

         12  a major user in itself.  You have got thousands and

         13  thousands of city employees, hundreds of city

         14  agencies and departments, all of which are consumers

         15  of broadband services.  The City could take and

         16  examine its own contracts, it could examine its own

         17  needs, and could become an anchor customer, if you

         18  will, for a particular area in which the City would

         19  like to see a carrier move into.

         20                 Finally, to make some comments about

         21  your legislation, to set up a temporary task force,

         22  in my experience in the federal government with task

         23  force's and advisory committee's, there is an equal

         24  chance that the advisory committee or task force

         25  could become a very effective driver of bold policy
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          2  change, or it could become a wasteland of endless

          3  contemplation and indecision.           If you want

          4  to be more of the former, I would give you a couple

          5  of suggestions.

          6                 One is, a task force should be given

          7  very specific instructions on the questions you want

          8  to see pursued.  In your legislation the language

          9  states that you want them to advise the City and the

         10  City Council on the feasibility, the economic

         11  feasibility, and technical feasibility of delivering

         12  affordable broadband service.  Well, that is a very

         13  broad mission and a very appropriate mission.  You

         14  may want to be much more specific on exactly what

         15  you want this task force to do.

         16                 For example, you may want to direct

         17  them to say, do an evaluation of various options of

         18  which the City can take in order to try and achieve

         19  this goal.  Any kind of advisory committee or task

         20  force that does not have a clear mission can

         21  certainly wander off and come up with nothing.

         22                 A  second thing I would urge you to

         23  consider is to pay close attention to the

         24  membership, and try hard to make sure you have a

         25  balance on the membership.  You want to balance
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          2  industry, both incumbent as well as potential new

          3  entrants, large and small.  You want to have on your

          4  commission or task force, you want to have

          5  representation of large and small businesses,

          6  consumers, non- profit organizations.  Try to

          7  balance it out.

          8                 Also, take advantage of the

          9  opportunity to bring in outside experts, bring in

         10  people who have had experience in other parts of the

         11  country, or other cities.  That can help you with

         12  some fresh ideas.

         13                 Third is to encourage this task force

         14  to hold, at least, one public meeting.  I believe it

         15  is very important in our system of government to

         16  work closely with the public, and a task force

         17  becomes an arm of the cities efforts to work with

         18  the citizens of New York City.  So encourage them to

         19  solicit and accept comments and suggestions from the

         20  City and hold some public meetings.

         21                 And then finally, one very important

         22  issue would be to make clear early on exactly what

         23  responsibilities and expectations you would have of

         24  city departments and agencies.

         25                 For any task force to be effective it
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          2  is going to need to do a lot of information

          3  gathering.  It is going to need access to a lot of

          4  data information that, perhaps, the City itself only

          5  holds.  Rather than allow the task force to run into

          6  a dead end at some point in its inquiry, and then

          7  you find yourself frustrated because maybe there is

          8  an agency or department that does not want to

          9  cooperate, why don't you clarify these rules ahead

         10  of time, and make it very clear that you expect some

         11  cooperation from all aspects of the city government

         12  to work with this task force.

         13                 And with that, I would be happy to

         14  take any questions you may have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 We will hear from Tim Lance, and then

         18  we would love to- we have many questions.

         19                 While we are waiting, I want to make

         20  sure we thank Bruce Lai, and Fredy Kaplan.  Bruce is

         21  the Policy Analyst, and Fredy is the wonderful Legal

         22  Counsel, and they make this committee work.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 Tim, you are all set, why don't you

         25  introduce yourself?
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          2                 MR. LANCE:  Hi, thank you

          3  Councilwoman Brewer.

          4                 My name is Tim Lance.  I am the

          5  Chairman of NYSERNet, New York State Education and

          6  Research Network, and I am a math professor.  I

          7  teach at the university in Albany.

          8                 I have been interacting with you over

          9  a number of years on technology issues, and in

         10  particular over the last two and a half years,

         11  NYSERNet made two, essentially, company risking

         12  ventures into broadband.  One in New York City,

         13  something I have called the Manhattan Project, and

         14  the other on a statewide basis, and I would like to

         15  talk a little bit about our experiences, and then

         16  maybe close with a perspective on broadband, and be

         17  open to questions.

         18                 First, a little bit about what

         19  NYSERNet is and is not.  We are a very small

         20  company.  We have been around for a long time.  We

         21  were the organization that, first entity, to make

         22  use of the Internet protocol outside of the federal

         23  government, so, we in New York can be very proud of

         24  the fact that the public Internet was born here, Al

         25  Gore, notwithstanding.  The first one was deployed
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          2  here.

          3                 We are a not- for- profit, and we are

          4  dedicated to the research and education community.

          5  We have deployed multiple networks over the years,

          6  and each time it has happened just in advance of

          7  some event, and to give a quick example, in 1993 we

          8  were all running T- 1 networks, 1.54 megabits per

          9  second, below what would be considered broadband

         10  today, and we all had a lot of head room but we

         11  decided to go to a 45 megabit backbone and the same

         12  summer that that was deployed, the Web appeared, and

         13  suddenly the world had changed, and the economic

         14  impact of the network had appeared.

         15                 We are not a carrier, quite small,

         16  very small staff, but we are heavily endowed.  We

         17  have got a very rich endowment, and there it is.  It

         18  is our board of directors, this is a intellectual

         19  pool that we draw on continually.  This is the group

         20  that said they were going to go off the cliff with

         21  me, not once, but twice in the last two years.  One

         22  for building in Manhattan, and one for building

         23  across the state.

         24                 Let me give you a little bit about

         25  the building, I call it the Manhattan Project, I am
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          2  told there was another one.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I would not call

          4  it that, keep going.

          5                 MR. LANCE:  But it is now not in

          6  Manhattan anymore either.  It is the New York City

          7  Optical Deployment by NYSERNet.

          8                 Here is our current map, we have

          9  crossed over the river, we are starting to expand

         10  into other areas, and I think that we are probably,

         11  thanks to CUNY and some of the other schools that

         12  need to reach various campuses, going to be

         13  accelerating doing this in the near future, so that

         14  this will be a fairly high capacity resource that is

         15  going throughout the state.

         16                 Our main collocation site is in the

         17  old A T & T building, 32 Avenue of the Americas,

         18  which is home to both a number of institutions and

         19  quite a few international networks that are in 32

         20  Avenue of the Americas, huge amount of bandwidth and

         21  rapidly growing, flowing into that site.  There is

         22  about a half of terabit per second of capacity

         23  flowing into that single collocation site, and New

         24  York has something that no one else in the world

         25  has, and that is this map.
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          2                 The reason we are so important, and

          3  the reason the rest of the Nation, the rest of the

          4  research and education networks in the Nation have

          5  to come to New York is because I can see all of

          6  those cables from our collo site.  So we are

          7  uniquely placed, no one else has that, there is

          8  nothing like that on the West Coast, and as you can

          9  see, there is nothing else like it on the East

         10  Coast.

         11                 We expanded this past- about a year

         12  ago we started extending the benefits of what

         13  happened in New York City, the members in New York

         14  City to statewide, all of these institutions and

         15  more.  What we had before was a OC- 12, 622 megabit,

         16  optical network crossing the state.  It was leased

         17  lines from a carrier, and we switched to controlling

         18  the transport ourselves.

         19                 This is our new network, it is

         20  following the same path, it is the path of the New

         21  York State Thruway, the Erie Canal of economic

         22  development in New York State, and it is depicting

         23  the fact that when you actually control the light,

         24  you have a great deal more flexibility of what you

         25  can do.  So there are multiple circuits inside.
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          2  This design can suffer an optical failure of one of

          3  the optical components, a router can go out and

          4  everyone else will stay up.  It will not survive a

          5  backhoe cut or a bridge collapsing, and we are going

          6  to have alternate paths going through Canada but

          7  when you control the light, you have got a great

          8  deal of flexibility of what you can do with it.

          9                 Our group is the high end community,

         10  what has happened in the past is the high- end

         11  quickly deploys, things are developed that work on

         12  these high- end networks, and they become the

         13  standard for the low- end networks in the commercial

         14  sector drives it further.

         15                 There is a rough description of what

         16  our network design looks like.  It has got 3/2

         17  independently addressable waves that we can

         18  reconfigure on an instance notice for something

         19  going from one site to another suddenly need 10

         20  megabits per second, going from one place to

         21  another, we can do it, essentially instantly.

         22                 I wanted to talk a little bit about

         23  what broadband means.  I have been spending a lot of

         24  time in Washington.  The FCC and members of Congress

         25  are starting to look at the Telecommunications Act
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          2  of 1996, which does not mention the Internet at all.

          3                 The FCC's formal definition of

          4  broadband, which they know is out of date, is 200

          5  megabits per second, or kilabits per second, and our

          6  200- something kilabits per second, and it is a

          7  continuum, and there are going to be very high- end

          8  users that are going to take some risks.  On the

          9  backbone that we have got crossing the state, our

         10  routers and the optical equipment are integrated in

         11  a way that a carrier cannot risk.  So we are really

         12  a bleeding- edge network.  We are taking chances.

         13  Our customers, the research and education community

         14  know that we can.

         15                 To depict various parts of what

         16  broadband looked like, I decided to convey it on a

         17  Richter Scale.  This is a log scale of- it going to

         18  be a little bit busy slide of various components of

         19  broadband.  Here first is a 150 year history of

         20  broadband, you saw this a couple of days ago.  The

         21  cable on the top is a segment of the original

         22  TransAtlantic Cable laid in 1866, and that was a

         23  single telegraph operator, an unregenerated signal,

         24  and a mirror galvanonmeter at the far end to catch

         25  this breathtakingly feeble signal when it landed.
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          2                 The one on the bottom is a sample of

          3  the cable that we have been pulling in Manhattan,

          4  and now into the other boroughs. It has got 864

          5  stands of glass, with an almost unthinkable carrying

          6  capacity.  If we try to put the various things that

          7  are labeled as broadband on this single chart, what

          8  I decided to do is take T- 1, 1.54 megabits per

          9  second as the baseline, zero event, and then do them

         10  all on a Richter Scale.  Divide everything by one

         11  million, five hundred and forty thousand, and take

         12  the log, and you get this picture.  It is doing a

         13  couple of things.  I have got various things like

         14  cable modems, they are a magnitude about a point-

         15  seven seismic event on the broadband scale, 80211- A

         16  is about the same thing as the cable modems, 80211-

         17  G's is quite a bit better.  You can see that the

         18  backbone capacity of our network is- each one of

         19  those lines is an order of magnitude, so we are one,

         20  two, three, four, five orders of magnitude above a

         21  cable modem.  So, we had better be careful about

         22  what we say about broadband, and we should think

         23  about a partnership between the public and the

         24  private sector, your recommendation before.  People

         25  who's job it is to take risks that carriers cannot
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          2  reasonably take, form a wonderful partnership

          3  because they will learn from the mistakes that we

          4  make, or the things that work, either way, and we

          5  have got a breathtaking disparity between the

          6  bottom, the 56 kilabit modem is almost an order of

          7  magnitude below T- 1, and the FCC's definition of

          8  broadband also fell off the chart, and that cable

          9  that I showed in the previous picture, that lower

         10  cable, its full capacity if it was lit with just`off

         11  the shelf' equipment, is this point up in the upper

         12  right hand corner- it is almost off the page, so,

         13  this is a logarithmic scale going vertically, and

         14  the mathematician in me would not- cannot forgive

         15  myself if I do not at least show you, here is the

         16  formula for our backbone over time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thanks Tim.

         18                 MR. LANCE:  There are two things

         19  going on in this chart.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thanks Tim, it

         21  is certainly up to the City Council class.  I cannot

         22  imagine my colleagues being here.  Keep going.

         23                 MR. LANCE:  I am going to close with

         24  this chart because there are two things on it.  One,

         25  I plotted various things that are broadband on this
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          2  logarithmic scale but there are two curves on it,

          3  one is actually a straight line, and it is showing

          4  the growth of processor speed.  I know you have got

          5  a commitment to get PCs into more hand, and the

          6  power of PCs has been going log linearaly, that is

          7  the lower line, the power of networks has been

          8  growing much faster than that, it is log, log, log

          9  linear that it has been growing, and so there is a

         10  disparity.  The very high- end computing is going to

         11  become more network- centric but we have both the

         12  growth of the chips, something known as Moore's Law,

         13  the incredibly fast growth of backbones, and the

         14  fact that these backbones can carry essentially

         15  unlimited amounts of any one of the boxes labeled

         16  near at the bottom, means anywhere there is fiber,

         17  you have got capacity for a great deal of

         18  traditional broadband capacity into homes, into

         19  apartments buildings, any one of them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Tim, thank you

         21  very much for all of your work, and for NYSERNet's

         22  expansion in New York, and the difference that it is

         23  making.

         24                 I think that I have told you that the

         25  folks at the Museum of Natural History are just
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          2  glowing thanks to the NYSERNet opportunity, and

          3  since that is in my district I hear about it all the

          4  time but I know that is true all the way across

          5  Bronx and Manhattan, and hopefully more communities.

          6    So, thank you.

          7                 Greg Rohde, thank you also for your

          8  suggestions, and we will certainly incorporate all

          9  that you providing in your testimony.

         10                 One question I had was when the folks

         11  from Economic Development Corporation talked about

         12  two to five years, that is quite a bit of time, and

         13  I am just wondering- it is a big city, I think the

         14  advantage of something that is a little bit more

         15  public, which is what we are talking about, it could

         16  include recommendations and the task force that the

         17  city is working on but what I want to know from you

         18  is what kind of time frame, obviously we are going

         19  to sunset such a task force, but what kind of time

         20  frame do you think a more public task force could

         21  operate in order to get the kind of project that we

         22  are talking about moving, as opposed to just

         23  talking?

         24                 I mean, I know it is hard, we are a

         25  different city, we are larger, we are more diverse,
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          2  but what would in your estimation?

          3                 MR. ROHDE:  Well I think for any task

          4  force to be successful, you want them to think both

          5  short term and long term, and you want to have

          6  something that would- I do not know what your

          7  definition of temporary is--.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I do not either.

          9                 MR. ROHDE: -- that you have in your

         10  legislation, but it would make sense to have

         11  something that you envision working for a fairly

         12  long period of time, like maybe going out in a few

         13  years, but you want them to produce results on an

         14  ongoing basis.

         15                 So for example, technology is

         16  changing at a rapid pace, especially in the area of

         17  wireless.  Wireless growth is just extraordinary,

         18  and we are on the cusp of another significant wave

         19  of capital investment of deployment in the whole

         20  wireless space because what the federal government

         21  is doing to release more spectrum out in the market,

         22  in the 700 megahertz band, and the

         23  2.5 GHz band, which is already released, there is a

         24  lot of development there, 3.5 GHz, there is a

         25  significant amount spectrum that is coming on the
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          2  market, so you are going to see a great growth.

          3                 You want to have measurable results

          4  and actions that take place now, that can take

          5  advantage of all this activity that is going to

          6  occur.

          7                 For example, my suggestion is if you-

          8  if the goal is to utilize public municipal

          9  properties to help facilitate this kind of entry,

         10  well, come up very quickly with what is your

         11  directive.  What exactly are you going to have as a

         12  policy so that the carriers who are interested in

         13  coming to New York know what they can take advantage

         14  of and what the rules are, and that will help

         15  facilitate their growth.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         17                 Tim Lance, when NYSERNet came to New

         18  York, what was the sort of time period?

         19                 Obviously, there was the planning

         20  period, and then there was an implementation but you

         21  seem to have implemented quite quickly.

         22                 What has been your time period in

         23  terms of some planning and some implementation for

         24  the work you are doing here?

         25                 MR. LANCE:  From the first serious
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          2  planning to having something that was financially

          3  stable and continuable, was about a year and a half.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  A year and a

          5  half, okay.

          6                 MR. LANCE:  The early stage, we

          7  talked about what we wanted to do, and many

          8  institutions said "count me in, this is something

          9  that we need."  And then, it got to the chief

         10  financial officers, where it had to go, and they

         11  said "is it built yet?" "No, do you want me to

         12  invest on something for twenty years that is not

         13  even built yet, and I do not know that it is going

         14  to work?"

         15                 So, we had a- this buffer period,

         16  when we actually had to get it in place, and that is

         17  where we were taking the risk, we spent our own

         18  money, a lot of it, to get this in place, not

         19  knowing if we would have the customers to keep it

         20  going.  Now it is expanding quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I want to thank

         22  you both very much for your testimony, for your

         23  time, for making the effort to come again to the

         24  hearing, and for being a resource ongoing, and I

         25  hope we will be able to follow up and make you proud
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          2  but I certainly thank you for all of your expertise,

          3  it is- I cannot tell you how much I appreciate it.

          4                 Thank you, thank you very much.

          5                 Brinton Young, Executive Vice

          6  President for Strategic Planning at EarthLink

          7  Incorporated.

          8                 Mr. Young has served as Executive

          9  Vice President for Strategic Planning of EarthLink

         10  since June 2001.  He is obviously involved with

         11  research and development, and he has previously- he

         12  was Senior Vice President of Marketing of EarthLink

         13  Network. Before EarthLink, he owned his own

         14  consulting practice.  He was a partner also at

         15  Fletcher and Company, a Boston- based consulting

         16  firm.  He has a bachelor's degree in physics from

         17  Yale, and an MBA and JD from Harvard.  He served a

         18  five year- term on the board of Micro D, the world's

         19  largest distributor of microcomputer products.

         20                 Welcome.

         21                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you, thank you.

         22                 Good morning Councilman Brewer, and

         23  good morning to all.

         24                 I would like to thank you for giving

         25  me the chance to speak to you today.
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          2                 As Councilman Brewer said, I run

          3  strategy at EarthLink.  I live in Pasadena,

          4  California but I am glad to be back in New York. My

          5  mom is a Brooklyn girl, and I have very happy

          6  memories of vacations and Christmas' spent in this

          7  City.  This City which sets the worlds standard for

          8  excellence in the arts and in many of the

          9  professions.

         10                 A few words on what EarthLink is up

         11  to, why I am here, and how I think we can help.

         12                 EarthLink, as you know, is an ISP.

         13  Our mission is to connect people to the Internet,

         14  and to give them the best experience possible.

         15  Today we deliver Internet service to over 5 million

         16  customers in dialup, cable, DSL, mobile wireless,

         17  satellite, and a few other things.

         18                 We have a million broadband

         19  subscribers, and by broadband I mean one megabit a

         20  second service or better, and we believe we do this

         21  the best of any company in America.  We have won the

         22  JD Powers Customer Satisfaction Award three years in

         23  a row for broadband, and for dialup, and we are

         24  proud of that record.

         25                 But we have a problem, and it is the
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          2  same problem America has, which is that broadband is

          3  too expensive.  Two monopolies control the last mile

          4  to the home.

          5                 Now EarthLink can buy access from

          6  these companies, but it buys it at a high price.

          7  Too high a price for us to turn it into a retail

          8  service, who offer it to the public at a great low

          9  price, and make a return.  So when we go to market

         10  with broadband, we now go to market at a premium to

         11  other competitors.

         12                 Given the situation, finding a cost

         13  effective third pipe to the home, essentially

         14  affordable broadband, to create a level playing

         15  field for EarthLink in broadband is our number one

         16  strategic challenge.

         17                 So for the last three years, I and

         18  others at EarthLink have a lot of digging into the

         19  next generation technologies, and this digging takes

         20  the form of trials, field tests, investments, and we

         21  have looked at many candidates, WiMax and a host of

         22  other wireless technologies, broadband over power

         23  lines, there are a couple of promising categories.

         24                 Today I want to focus on one

         25  particular approach to the last mile that I think is
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          2  ready to meet your needs for a affordable broadband

          3  Internet access.

          4                 What I am talking about is WiFi

          5  technology deployed in a mesh.  Now this is the same

          6  basic WiFi that is used for local networking in

          7  homes and businesses, and in hot spots that we are

          8  all familiar with, but it can also be used to

          9  provide broadband to the home.  In the system that I

         10  am talking about, the WiFi radios are deployed in a

         11  grid throughout the city, typically on light poles,

         12  spaced about 1,200 feet apart.  The Internet traffic

         13  passes through this mesh, through this grid, to the

         14  home, and into the home of the consumer.  With the

         15  right equipment in the consumers home, it will

         16  deliver about a megabit per second downstream.

         17                 The power of this system is its low

         18  cost.  It leverages the low cost of WiFi chips, of

         19  which they ship north of 50 million in the U.S.

         20  Alone.  It can be deployed for less than $25 per

         21  household passed.  It does not need outdoor antenna.

         22    It does not need a truckroll.  It does not need

         23  professional installation. I have seen it working in

         24  Chaska, Minnesota where the service is offered for

         25  $16.00 a month, and 30 percent of the town signed up
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          2  in a month.

          3                 Here is the pitch.  Using this

          4  technology, we believe EarthLink can deliver 1

          5  megabit a second broadband for a retail price under

          6  $20.00.  We are prepared to work with the city to

          7  make this happen.

          8                 Here is the catch.  We need access to

          9  the light poles.  The economic model does not work

         10  with pole rentals of $60.00 a month, much less

         11  $250.00 a month, when the electricity usage is less

         12  than a dollar.  In order to enable this technology,

         13  the city needs to make the light poles available for

         14  a couple of dollars a month.

         15                 Now, here are some hard questions.

         16                 Does the density of New York City,

         17  the high- rise building present challenges?  Of

         18  course it does.

         19                 Are there technical issues still to

         20  be addressed and tested before we would be confident

         21  enough to build out the whole city?  You bet.

         22                 But we are working with our equipment

         23  partners on these problems.

         24                 Would a phased rollout be prudent?

         25  Yes, we think so.
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          2                 Now it is probably beyond my level of

          3  competence to advise this Committee on policy

          4  matters, but since you asked, do I think it is

          5  important for kids to have broadband?  Of course it

          6  is. My eleven and twelve- year- olds use it every

          7  night.

          8                 I would like to mention our computers

          9  are seven years old, and they work fine but the

         10  broadband is crucial for going on Google, get on the

         11  EarthLink start page, ask a question, boom, there is

         12  the answer.

         13                 It is important enough that both

         14  presidential candidates thought that universal

         15  broadband was important.

         16                 Does that mean the City of New York

         17  has to get in the business of owning and running

         18  networks?  No. But the City can facilitate the

         19  deployment of those networks by partnering with the

         20  private sector, and EarthLink is prepared to be that

         21  partner.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much.  That was very clear, and appreciated.

         24                 I am just going to ask a few

         25  questions.
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          2                 One of them is, in this scenario

          3  because high- rise's are not the majority of our

          4  city, obviously much of the boroughs have low- rise

          5  buildings despite what visitors might think but do

          6  the high- rise's have a different scenario?  In

          7  other words, what your envisioning, which would

          8  involve I assume, working on many of the pole tops-

          9  does that enable the same connectivity at the same

         10  low cost to go to the high- rise's?

         11                 Many of our low- income communities

         12  are, obviously, housing developments, and so on,

         13  which are high- rise's.

         14                 MR. YOUNG:  I cannot say right now

         15  that we have the technology out of the box to deploy

         16  on the high- rise buildings with a lot of

         17  confidence.

         18                 It is something, as I think I

         19  indicated, there are solutions that address that.

         20  The technology is newer. If you are asking my

         21  assessment of could we get there?  Yes, I think we

         22  could.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         24                 MR. YOUNG:  I can say I have seen it

         25  work, I have seen it done, I have seen it deployed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you.

          3                 What is the time frame?  I know that

          4  the City of Philadelphia, I know you are familiar

          5  with that, is working on trying to do something

          6  similar, different city, different scenario. But I

          7  am just wondering, in the best of all worlds, what

          8  would be Philadelphia's timetable, and what do you

          9  think New York City, both to plan, and then to

         10  implement?

         11                 What would be a, sort of, ballpark?

         12  Maybe with Philadelphia, I do not know what their

         13  planning timetable was.

         14                 MR. YOUNG:  My sense is that it was

         15  about a year, although the activity over the last

         16  nine months was highly accelerated.

         17                 I think for your work, nine months

         18  would be plenty to review the options, and decide on

         19  a process.  Heck, I might push it faster.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         21                 MR. YOUNG:  In terms of actually

         22  getting the

         23  network--.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  There is always

         25  politics that are involved, but yes, I hear you are
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          2  fast.

          3                 MR. YOUNG:  About a year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

          5                 MR. YOUNG:  But in terms of the

          6  practical thing of building out the network because

          7  of the- because of a couple of things, because every

          8  radio environment is different.

          9                 Philadelphia is different than

         10  suburbs, New York is different from Philadelphia, we

         11  would look to a phase deployment where we would

         12  deploy a part of the city with some representative

         13  architectural features, and then tune the network.

         14                 So, you can imagine a phase one which

         15  would take something like six months, and a phase

         16  two, which would build out the rest of the city in

         17  six to twelve months after that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         19                 MR. YOUNG:  That would be a

         20  reasonable way to go.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Obviously, one

         22  of our concerns are our schools and our libraries.

         23                 In our schools we have 1,100

         24  buildings, many more schools in those buildings, and

         25  libraries are a mixture of some wireless, and some
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          2  of the older libraries, PCs that are hardwired. So,

          3  my question is, this is obviously an area- we

          4  obviously also have many private universities and

          5  public universities, and how would what you are

          6  talking about impact positively some of our schools,

          7  where right now there is an effort through eRate and

          8  private contributions, public contributions, it is a

          9  mish- mash, of trying to make schools wireless?  It

         10  is not there not yet.  Ditto with the libraries, any

         11  renovation is creating a wireless environment, the

         12  cost is huge, this is not an inexpensive

         13  proposition.

         14                 So I am just wondering how what you

         15  are describing, in terms of the roll out, would have

         16  a positive impact on schools, libraries, and

         17  basically public institutions?

         18                 MR. YOUNG:  Well, you are right.

         19                 I have been focusing on residential

         20  broadband.  The same technology can be used to

         21  deploy higher capacity pipes at somewhat higher

         22  cost, in the range of 30 to 50 a month, or for very

         23  significantly higher capacity, maybe 100 or more.

         24                 In other words, what this technology

         25  could do is get a pretty fat pipe into a school,
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          2  library, or other- or for that matter, a government

          3  office, and this would, as far as distributing that

          4  technology within the school, within the library,

          5  that would be a separate matter.  I assume there is

          6  some kind of networking now that would enable that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  So in other

          8  words, if you were taking a different hat and

          9  sitting here as public policy, as opposed to

         10  EarthLink, a task force would look at something like

         11  this.  They would see what the consumer,

         12  residential, public institution, et cetera, what

         13  their needs are, and try to address each?

         14                 MR. YOUNG:  I would invite you to

         15  consider at least that broadly, and perhaps, even

         16  consider the potential impact on municipal workers

         17  who would get broadband access while they were doing

         18  their jobs in the City, whether city inspectors, or

         19  public safety, the idea of being able to, instead of

         20  having to go back to the office to get papers or

         21  whatever, to be able to quickly access information,

         22  blueprints, whatever.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right, I mean to

         24  the credit of the Administration, public safety,

         25  obviously, a big concern in our city.  There is an
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          2  RFP looking at that focused spectrum, public safety,

          3  so there is that effort.  It is not there yet but it

          4  is certainly being considered.

          5                 Are there new technologies,

          6  obviously, there was some discussion about WiMax,

          7  and some of the other--.

          8                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  So, are there

         10  new technologies that this task force would

         11  ostensibly also put into the mix?

         12                 It is a changing world, everything

         13  from telecom acts, which would tell us what we can

         14  and cannot do in some cases, we would rather pay

         15  attention to that, but at the same time, new

         16  technologies are happening.

         17                 Would that be part of the mix?

         18                 MR. YOUNG:  I think that the Council

         19  would do well to inform itself on the entire

         20  technological spectrum.

         21                 I think WiMax in particular is a very

         22  promising technology.

         23                 I know Intel is putting a lot of

         24  serious effort into that, and their intention is to

         25  make that a low- cost technology as well.
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          2                 I think we should realistically

          3  consider that a little farther off, and I think that

          4  certainly, any architecture that EarthLink would

          5  deploy would contemplate the ability to be upgraded,

          6  at a cost, but upgraded to something newer and

          7  better.

          8                 There are a whole host of technical

          9  issues to consider around what might come next, and

         10  is it licensed spectrum, is it open spectrum, does

         11  somebody have to buy it, will the customers have

         12  cheap access to the equipment to receive the signal?

         13  That is really the determining thing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, obviously

         15  in Philadelphia there is a cost to the city because

         16  they are doing a public/private partnership.

         17                 I think when the CIO was kind enough

         18  to come and speak at our Brooklyn hearing, was a

         19  cost of about $10 million, which seemed very low to

         20  me but the fact of the matter is, there would be a

         21  cost I would assume to a city, if there was build-

         22  out. Obviously, you could talk about it being what

         23  one could, in fact, rent the pole tops for if you

         24  were doing it differently.

         25                 But, do you think, obviously this
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          2  would be part of a task force discussion, do you

          3  think there would be much cost to New York City for

          4  a roll- out like this?

          5                 Or even just if not numbers, what

          6  would be some of the aspects that should be

          7  considered?

          8                 MR. YOUNG:  Well like I say, there

          9  are different models that the City might adopt.  It

         10  might adopt a model of attempting to build a network

         11  itself.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I think we are

         13  not going to do that according to the Commissioner,

         14  but that is one  possibility.

         15                 MR. YOUNG:  That is generally the

         16  direction that Philadelphia has at least initially

         17  moved in, and the cost for doing that, just round

         18  numbers, if you take the $25.00 per household pass,

         19  it would be $75 million.

         20                 If the City, and the model that I was

         21  proposing, was that the City would partner with

         22  ISP's but make its assets available to a partner at

         23  rates now below what is currently available.  There

         24  the out- of- pocket cost to the City would, frankly,

         25  be negligible.  In fact, the City could look to a
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          2  franchise fee for granting those rights.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right, okay.

          4                 What do you think in terms of your

          5  suggestion, it would include, we talked a little bit

          6  about public institutions, obviously, the resident

          7  and we are also concerned about the small business

          8  or just businesses in general, how do you consider

          9  or how do you think about that aspect of what you

         10  are suggesting?

         11                 MR. YOUNG:  The small businesses and

         12  the organizations would be served with, as I say, a

         13  fatter pipe, which would be deployed with a

         14  different kind of equipment.  It would go over the

         15  same general wireless network but it would have what

         16  is called a point- to- point circuit, and this could

         17  be used not only for small businesses but for city

         18  offices.  This could be a potential cost savings for

         19  city offices that now have T- 1 lines.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         21                 MR. YOUNG:  So there is another area,

         22  in fact, part of the economic mix that makes this

         23  feasible is some anchor tenancy of the City, in

         24  buying access for its needs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, I want to

                                                            64

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  thank you very much for joining us here today.

          3                 We could spend a great deal of more

          4  time but I know there are other witnesses, and I

          5  look forward to much more discussion.

          6                 Thank you for making an effort to be

          7  here today.

          8                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you, it is a great

          9  pleasure, Councilman Brewer.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Our next speakers are Andrew Rasiej,

         13  Steve Mason (sic) and David Birdsell.

         14                 Andrew Rasiej is Founder of Personal

         15  Democracy Forum.

         16                 Steve Masur is Managing Partner of

         17  Masur and Associates.

         18                 David Birdsell is a professor and

         19  Executive Director of Academic Programs at the

         20  School of Public Affairs at Baruch College.

         21                 Good morning, who would like to

         22  start?

         23                 Andrew would you like to start?

         24                 MR. RASIEJ:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.
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          2                 Good morning.

          3                 MR. RASIEJ:  Thank you Chairman

          4  Brewer for inviting me to testify.

          5                 You have been one of the few city

          6  officials to demonstrate a real understanding of the

          7  high stakes, high- tech race that New York is

          8  engaged in with cities around the world, and the

          9  need for our government to spur the development of a

         10  true 21st Century infrastructure to remain

         11  competitive in the Information Age.  I applaud your

         12  leadership, and welcome the opportunity to support

         13  you in this critical effort.

         14                 Before addressing the legislation

         15  being considered today, let me begin by addressing

         16  the underlying problem.

         17                 The fact is that we are woefully

         18  behind other U.S. Cities and world cities in

         19  developing the capabilities to compete in a

         20  knowledge economy, particularly when it comes to the

         21  broadband penetration among businesses and

         22  residences.

         23                 Some sobering facts to digest:  Among

         24  American cities, according to the Progressive Policy

         25  Institute, New York, the media capital of the world,
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          2  ranks a paltry 17th in terms of broadband

          3  communications capacity as indicated by the lack of

          4  private sector competition in the city.

          5                 What is even more disturbing, though,

          6  is that gap is likely to widen in the years ahead,

          7  judging from the moves our competitors are making.

          8                 Philadelphia, a city that arguably

          9  has not taken the lead on anything since 1776--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I am glad you

         11  are not running for office in Philadelphia, Andrew,

         12  keep going.

         13                 MR. RASIEJ: -- is already

         14  implementing a detailed plan to develop a low- cost

         15  wireless broadband service for every resident and

         16  business in its city.  Indeed, Philadelphia has

         17  announced the goal of making that city "the number

         18  one wireless city in the world and setting the

         19  standard by which wireless accessibility is

         20  measured."

         21                 In light of Philadelphia's

         22  announcement, Boston and San Francisco's political

         23  leaders have also announced the development of a

         24  municipal wireless service plan.  And, smaller

         25  cities attempting to become the next high- tech
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          2  hubs, such as Minneapolis, have also announced

          3  projects to bring affordable broadband to all

          4  residents.

          5                 Why, even small towns and third- tier

          6  cities such as St. Cloud, Florida, and Chaska,

          7  Minnesota, have developed municipal wireless

          8  networks for their citizens.

          9                 And that is just what is happening

         10  here at home in the U.S.

         11                 In Asian cities from Tokyo to Seoul,

         12  over half of households have broadband access, 10-

         13  20 times faster than here in New York.  Taipei plans

         14  to offer citywide wireless broadband access to

         15  nearly 90 percent of its three million residents by

         16  the end of 2005.  Jerusalem is following suit with a

         17  city- wide network there. And, the European Union

         18  has given its blessing to municipal broadband

         19  networks sprouting up all over Europe.

         20                 So Madame Chair, this is where we

         21  are- the children of South Korea have better access

         22  to the U.S. Library of Congress than our children in

         23  the South Bronx.

         24                 The people of New York need to know

         25  that this is not a failure of wisdom or wealth on
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          2  our part, but of will.

          3                 Up to this point, our government and

          4  in particular, our current Mayor, has suffered from

          5  a severe imagination gap, and inability to see

          6  opportunities available to us and seize those

          7  possibilities.

          8                 Fortunately, the bill you have put

          9  forward today will go a long way towards filling

         10  that leadership void by setting in motion the long-

         11  overdue creation of a universal, and what is

         12  commonly referred to, Community Internet Broadband

         13  Network, and the closing of the digital divide.

         14                 We are no longer saying if, we are

         15  saying how and when, and committing ourselves to

         16  this critical goal.  For that alone, Chairman

         17  Brewer, you should be commended.

         18                 I do believe, however, that Intro.

         19  625 does raise some concerns that need to be

         20  addressed, and I would like to take a few moments to

         21  share those thoughts on how to improve it and

         22  maximize its chances of success.

         23                 My first concern is that the task

         24  force is charged with providing a report on the

         25   "technical, legal, environmental and economical
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          2  feasibility of providing affordable broadband access

          3  to all New York City residents, non- profit

          4  organizations and businesses."

          5                 With all due respect, we already know

          6  that such a network can be built, and that it can be

          7  built cheaply.           Philadelphia's plan, for

          8  example, will cost the city a mere $6- $7 per

          9  resident.  This figure pales in comparison to the

         10  more than $37 per resident cost in city tax dollars

         11  that our Republican mayor wanted to hand over in

         12  corporate welfare to his friends to built a football

         13  stadium in Manhattan- and this figure does not

         14  include the additional taxpayer dollars he wanted

         15  the state to contribute.

         16                 My second concern is routed in the

         17  fact that the Mayor is authorized to appoint four of

         18  the nine task members to this task force.  The fact

         19  is, this Mayor has shown no indication he "get's it"

         20  when it comes to the value of broadband and the need

         21  to speed it deployment.

         22                 As I noted in my testimony before

         23  this committee last month, the conclusions of the

         24  Mayor's "Telecommunications Infrastructure and

         25  Economic Development Study" were grossly inadequate
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          2  for this city's interests.  Indeed, what was the

          3  Mayor's solution to the digital divide and his take

          4  of the future economic ability was- surrender.

          5                 Our supposedly forward- thinking

          6  mayor simply ignored current trends involving

          7  community Internet programs and took the

          8  distinctively unenergetic view that "the City's

          9  ability to affect the ongoing development of

         10  deployment of its telecommunications infrastructure,

         11  and the quality of service delivered over that

         12  infrastructure, is limited."

         13                 I see little reason to be excited

         14  about a broadband task force where 44 percent of its

         15  members will be opposed at the outset to bringing

         16  low- cost broadband service to all New Yorkers.

         17                 Therefore Madame, I respectfully

         18  suggest looking at the City Council commission on

         19  spending the Coalition for Fiscal Equity funds as a

         20  model for how to proceed with a broadband task

         21  force.

         22                 For that commission, the Speaker

         23  chose two impartial, independent chairs and tasked

         24  them with finding nine independent non- partial

         25  experts from a wide cross- sample of groups
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          2  dedicated to improving New York City education.  One

          3  additional slot was set aside to be filled by the

          4  Mayor, who showed his lack of commitment to CFE by

          5  not appointing anyone.

          6                 This CFE commission produced a well-

          7  received, comprehensive report on how to best spend

          8  the CFE money.  It thus presents a model ripe for

          9  replication when figuring out how to set up a

         10  broadband task force.  It is a model where the Mayor

         11  and the Speaker have input, but not control, over

         12  the process.

         13                 My third concern is over the timing.

         14  Intro. 625 gives the task force nine months to

         15  develop a report on broadband services.  By

         16  contrast, Wireless Philadelphia's advisory group

         17  took only five- and- a- half months to produce its

         18  plan.

         19                 Given the urgency of the problem, any

         20  broadband task force from the`City That Never

         21  Sleeps', should work as fast as the task force from

         22  the`City Of Brotherly Love.'

         23                 Finally, I want to work with you and

         24  this Committee to ensure that whatever task force is

         25  established has the resources it needs and generates
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          2  the public support it deserves.

          3                 In this light, the task force should

          4  take advantage of the opportunity to demonstrate the

          5  power of the Internet to bring New York's government

          6  closer to its citizens.

          7                 I urge that the legislation require

          8  the taskforce to broadcast all of its public

          9  hearings over the Internet, and maintain a state-

         10  of- the- art website to disseminate information to,

         11  and receive information from, the eight million

         12  public advocates of the City of New York who need

         13  low- cost broadband services.

         14                 This will be a way to "walk the talk"

         15  and show that local government is serious about

         16  using technology to improve democracy.

         17                 As always, Madame Chair, I look

         18  forward to doing whatever I can to help you create

         19  an effective broadband taskforce to eliminate New

         20  York's imagination gap and the damaging digital

         21  divide.

         22                 I again applaud you on your

         23  leadership and vision, and look forward to

         24  continuing our dialogue on this critical issue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.
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          2                 Professor Birdsell.

          3                 MR. BIRDSELL:  Good morning,

          4  Chairperson Brewer.

          5                 Thank you for asking me here today,

          6  and congratulations to you and to your co- sponsors

          7  on creating what, I think, is likely to be a very

          8  useful piece of legislation.

          9                 I would like to confine my remarks

         10  very specifically to 625, and to the revision of

         11  625- A, because I think that raises a separate issue

         12  that 625 does not.  But, I also just want to

         13  underscore in the two previous hearings that this

         14  Committee has held in January and in May, just last

         15  month, the hearing that Andrew eluded to a moment

         16  ago, you heard lots of excellent reasons to make

         17  sure that we have broadband access evenly

         18  distributed throughout our communities.  You also

         19  heard lots of reasons why the present plan does not

         20  serve those needs because it is underspecified,

         21  overly deferential to business, not focused on

         22  domestic access, and uninterested, largely, in the

         23  role that non profits play in providing services to

         24  the City.  And for all of those reasons, this

         25  report, and this task force makes a great deal of
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          2  sense.

          3                 So, I take that as a given in

          4  everything that I am going to go forward with, and

          5  will not have anything more to say about that.

          6                 That said, I think that the nudginess

          7  that you talk about can be strengthened in the

          8  present proposal, and so, I am going to be talking

          9  about basically building nudginess, and then I want

         10  to talk a little bit about the structure of the

         11  committee, and the composition of that committee.

         12                 The present money language in this

         13  legislation is in Paragraph A, of Section 2, and I

         14  will just quote that because we actually have not

         15  heard it verbatim this morning: "to advise the Mayor

         16  of the City of New York and the Speaker of the

         17  Council of the City of New York as to the technical,

         18  legal, environmental and economical feasibility of

         19  providing affordable broadband access to all New

         20  York City residents, non- profit organizations, and

         21  businesses."  Andrew said a moment ago, and he is

         22  exactly right, that question is answered.  We know

         23  that those are feasible, we know that it is safe to

         24  do it, we know that it can be done at a reasonable

         25  price point.
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          2                 So, I think the questions really need

          3  to move forward, and I think that the sponsors may

          4  consider moving forwardtive (sic) language that asks

          5  people specifically to give them proposals on how

          6  that works because that is more likely to produce a

          7  result that is consistent with Section 1 of this

          8  report, which is an eloquent statement of the needs

          9  that the task force is designed to serve.

         10                 Specifically, there is just a couple

         11  of- this is a very small change, and I am going to

         12  take the liberty of making a recommendation.  If a

         13  task force were instead to- and I am just speaking

         14  to replacement of that language in a very small way-

         15  evaluate and recommend action on technically,

         16  legally, environmentally, and economically feasible

         17  means of providing affordable broadband to all New

         18  York City residents, non- profit organizations and

         19  businesses, you would then avoid the prospectively,

         20  unfortunate outcome of having a task force that is,

         21  in fact, hung up in some of the difficult

         22  discussions that Greg already talked about a while

         23  ago.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Done.

         25                 MR. BIRDSELL:  Thank you.
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          2                 I do think, however, that it would be

          3  a mistake to over specify in terms of asking that

          4  they examine specific technologies, and you get into

          5  the classic problem`specification'.               If

          6  you start a specification, you are on a slippery

          7  slope, there are lots of things that you could ask

          8  people to look at.  If you leave them off, does that

          9  mean they cannot look at them?  Does it mean that

         10  you  have to consider the three or four that you

         11  pull out of the mix to say,`you really should look

         12  at X technology or Y technology', does that then

         13  give A, B, and C technologies a poor start out of

         14  the gate when, in fact, they may be the best

         15  responses?

         16                 Your committee is going to have to be

         17  perceived as an independent committee, coming to its

         18  own conclusions.  I think if you change that piece

         19  of the mission, the basic mandate that they

         20  received, then the rest if follows, in fact, from

         21  the work that they would have to do to get that

         22  done.

         23                 Now that said, there is one- I think

         24  it is reasonable to specify certain outputs.  One of

         25  the things that concerns me here is the question of
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          2  trying to track our progress toward the provision of

          3  broadband services throughout the City, and I think

          4  one thing that could be specified here that would be

          5  useful is a broadband barometer.

          6                 If we were able to see month by

          7  month, or quarter by quarter, whatever the

          8  appropriate interval would be, some progress against

          9  fairly simple goals; number of households served,

         10  number of zip codes served, number of neighborhoods

         11  served, and see where that mercury moves week to

         12  week, month to month, quarter to quarter, year to

         13  year.  And I would even phrase some of this in

         14  language that echos something that Andrew just said,

         15  percentage of souls accessed today that we have in

         16  Manhattan, percentage of souls accessed today that

         17  we have in Brooklyn, and so on throughout all of the

         18  neighborhoods and boroughs of the City.  It should

         19  be provocative to a certain extent, but it should be

         20  brief.

         21                 Let me just say two things about why

         22  it is I think such a tool would be important.

         23                 The first is to put hard numbers on

         24  the table.  It is far too easy to get lost in the

         25  soup of promise in this kind of activity, thinking
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          2  about what we may do someday, and neglecting what it

          3  is we are tied to today because our systems are not

          4  capable of providing the full range of services that

          5  we envision when we talk about all of the miraculous

          6  promises of broadband.

          7                 So let us put the numbers out there,

          8  let us not bury it in 80 page reports, we could have

          9  five metrics and we would be there.

         10                 But number two, this task force

         11  because it has no direct ability to- it can

         12  influence policy but it cannot make that policy in a

         13  direct way.  It is going to have to have a

         14  communicative component and gets its points across

         15  in a memorable, sharp, zippy way that gets more

         16  people involved than the many careful advocates,

         17  many of whom you see in the room today before you.

         18                 So, I think that those are important

         19  tools, and just ways to sharpen the mission.

         20                 Now let me talk briefly about task

         21  force structure and composition.  625 and 625- A

         22  differ in several respects.  One respect that

         23  concerns me somewhat is the removal of any mention

         24  of staff resources in the 625- A version of the

         25  legislation, and if you have nine people without
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          2  staff resources, and I am not suggesting by the way,

          3  that Bruce should spend his hours between 2 and 3

          4  a.m. On Monday mornings doing staff work for this

          5  task force, but I do think it is important to think

          6  about what has been reasonable for the nine people

          7  in a five month or a nine month train to try to

          8  accomplish.  You do not want to create an army of

          9  people on the task force, but I think you may well

         10  want to think in terms of at least 15 folks.

         11                 There is another reason for that as

         12  well.

         13                 If you start thinking about who needs

         14  to be at the table here, you might think about

         15  somebody who is expert in communication law, someone

         16  who is expert in communication policy, someone who

         17  is an expert in the technologies of broadband

         18  implementation and community service provision per

         19  se, a business providing broadband services today in

         20  New York, a business that would like to broadband

         21  services but is not presently doing so, a non-

         22  profit dedicated to providing broadband access,

         23  DoITT of course, a provider of supportive housing or

         24  maybe two, the City's public libraries, the

         25  entertainment industry, the media, healthcare,
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          2  health policy interests, and environmental impact

          3  specialists.

          4                 Now clearly, some people, and in fact

          5  I would argue, people to my right and people to my

          6  left, embody many of those interests in one person

          7  but I think it is a good idea to have the diversity

          8  of perspective with single commitments at the table.There

          9  are many people in this room today, not speaking at

         10  the hearing today but having provided community

         11  access in underserved neighborhoods for years, Bruce

         12  Lincoln just over my left shoulder, is somebody who

         13  could collect many of these concerns, and those are

         14  concerns that should be represented.  But if you

         15  only have nine members, and if you are only

         16  appointing five of them, you will not have a

         17  guarantee that you reach even a majority, much less

         18  all of these interests unless you find people,

         19  again, who are omni- competent, and able to

         20  represent with equal weight the various constituents

         21  of their omni- competence.

         22                 So, I would be concerned about that

         23  and try to make sure that you, both, expand the

         24  committee to a certain extent and try to provide it

         25  at some level with the resources.  Again, wonderful
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          2  idea, and I think precisely because of the defects

          3  of the DoITT and EDC proposal, a necessary one.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Steve Masur.

          8                 MR. MASUR:  Hi, thank you for having

          9  me here today. I really appreciate everything that I

         10  have heard already, and I have learned quite a lot.

         11                 I am nervous often in these

         12  circumstances so I will try to limit my comments to

         13  a single issue, so as to spare everyone the

         14  awkwardness of listening to me stumble through them.

         15                 The issue that I want to talk about

         16  is, simply, the usefulness of something that is not

         17  often addressed. I mean we are talking about

         18  the`how's and the why's', and that is really what we

         19  should be talking about here but what about

         20  the`what'?

         21                 When you are going to the public to

         22  present broadband access, the question that some

         23  people could have is "why", and I think the reason

         24  is that why do we need broadband access, and that is

         25  really all I would address here.
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          2                 Our firm works with many smaller

          3  businesses in New York, and businesses have a choice

          4  in the city that they choose to set up their

          5  operations in, and so, earlier stage businesses to

          6  be attracted to New York what they need- we have

          7  many of the things that we need, we do not have some

          8  of the things that they need, and this simply

          9  sweetens the pie, and creates more of a reason for

         10  businesses to come to New York.

         11                 What early stage businesses need is

         12  they need access to educated people, and we have

         13  that, we have many good universities, a wide variety

         14  of universities in New York providing people who are

         15  skilled in a wide variety of different things to

         16  created a multifarious business environment here,

         17  which is what we have.

         18                 In order to continue to grow that, we

         19  should address some of the things we do not have.

         20  We do not have access to cheap space.  That is

         21  something that is difficult to solve, and not in the

         22  purview of this committee, but the next thing that

         23  you need is you need access to an Internet

         24  connection, a reliable and solid Internet connection

         25  so that you can provide your services, and many of
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          2  us take for granted the Internet connection, and so,

          3  people say`well, why do we need that- I have the

          4  Internet at work, or I have the Internet at home',

          5  and the fact is that just imagine yourself when you

          6  go away from the office, when you go away from the

          7  home, maybe on vacation, maybe on a business trip,

          8  and you do not have access to the Internet, how

          9  little work you can get done.

         10                 That is the reality that early stage

         11  companies have now in New York, and that is the

         12  reason why we need broadband Internet access.

         13                 That is all I have to say, thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you.

         15                 I do have a question though about

         16  small businesses because one of the concerns we have

         17  had is, if you are a public official and you have

         18  constituents, you have parents, you have people who

         19  are concerned about child care, the list goes on but

         20  this is a very undemanding population in terms of

         21  this issue, and it is hard because I really do wish

         22  people were crying for- I mean it would be very

         23  strange to have a rally for broadband, but we have

         24  rally's for everything else.

         25                 My question is, do your small
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          2  businesses that you work with, are they aware that

          3  in a different scenario they could have less

          4  expensive, more efficient connectivity, if we were

          5  to have a different city policy?

          6                 Does that discussion come up?

          7                 MR. MASUR:  I do not think they are

          8  aware of it.  I do not think they- they think of it

          9  as something that they need, they do not know how to

         10  get it.  They do not think of it as something that

         11  Con Edison would provide, or that the government

         12  could help them with.  They are just trying to get

         13  up and running, and they really are not aware of-

         14  they are not even aware of the not- for- profit

         15  resources that they have here.

         16                 So that actually could be a good

         17  goal, is to make early- stage businesses more aware

         18  of the resources that they have, and more aware for

         19  example, of this Committee and the focus and the

         20  push for providing this service.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Professor

         22  Birdsell, do you have any comment on this?

         23                 I know this is obviously part of what

         24  you would consider a larger task force, and I agree

         25  would deal with, in other words, the voice that I am
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          2  trying to develop, is it there now, I know this

          3  because I go to communities and try to bring this

          4  up, and there are space concerns, quality of the

          5  work force concerns, et cetera.  Those are the real

          6  issues, market share, and so on, but I never get

          7  anybody in their first discussion asking about this.

          8                 So obviously, what you are saying is

          9  part of the task force should include people who

         10  are, either aware or as you suggest, do not have yet

         11  the knowledge and then they could bring that to the

         12  task force.

         13                 Do you think that this is the kind of

         14  topic that we should be focusing on?

         15                 Obviously, what we want is to get

         16  this task force up and running, to include these

         17  voices, but do you think that if we were to some

         18  outreach, we would be able to get this demand going?

         19  Because to have an effective policy, you do need

         20  some demand from people who are directly affected by

         21  the lack of a service, or who need a better service.

         22                 MR. BIRDSELL:  I think broadband

         23  posses a few political communication problems,

         24  public communication problems.               It is

         25  one of those things that once you know what it is,
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          2  and once you have used it, and once you recognize

          3  the benefits, it is kind of, "yes, I need it, I

          4  cannot live without it", but until you have done

          5  those things, people say broadband, and

          6  immediately`click', that is tech stuff,`I do not

          7  want to pay attention, why should I care?'

          8                 That is one of the reasons I

          9  recommend the broadband barometer.  You need very

         10  quick and easy ways of saying basically,`you are

         11  slipping behind'.  New Yorkers do not like to slip

         12  behind. They do not like to think of New York

         13  getting X- percentage of what they have in Seoul,

         14  are you kidding me?  So unfortunately,`No, we are

         15  not kidding you.'  And if we can make those kinds of

         16  comparisons, and I am being to a certain extent,

         17  deliberately `nudgy' and provocative in this case,

         18  but we would like to be able to say,`hey, you can

         19  get cheesesteaks and better broadband in

         20  Philadelphia, how about that?'  That does not settle

         21  well.  We need those kinds of communicative hooks,

         22  and it would not be a bad idea to have somebody, if

         23  not on the committee, at least closely associated

         24  with this task force who would think about

         25  publicizing need and progress issues on broadband.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Well, I thought

          3  your barometer is a great idea to make that clear.

          4                 Andrew do you want to comment on

          5  this, Andrew Rasiej?

          6                 MR. RASIEJ:  Gale, as you know, I am

          7  running around the City promoting this idea pretty

          8  broadly, and I run into a lot of people who do not

          9  necessarily understand the Internet.  So I try to

         10  cast it in a language that they can understand.

         11                 So, to a mother of three who might

         12  have two jobs, who actually has not been on the

         13  Internet, I can ask her the following questions:

         14                 Do you want your children to have as

         15  much access to the Library of Congress as the kids

         16  Bengal or India?  And she will nod yes.

         17                 Do you want your fire fighters to be

         18  able to download blueprints of buildings on their

         19  way to the fire?  She will nod yes.

         20                 Do you want you loved ones to be able

         21  to dial 911 on the subways if there is an emergency,

         22  and be found by the police and the fire department?

         23  She will nod yes.

         24                 This is an example of where

         25  leadership is really required.  We cannot always
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          2  rely on the public, especially in New York which is

          3  a very busy place, to necessarily stop and solve a

          4  problem.

          5                 One hundred and fifty years ago,

          6  Gale, your predecessors decided to spend the money,

          7  the political capital to build a water aqueduct

          8  system that would feed New York water in order for

          9  New York's businesses to continue to grow in the

         10  Industrial Age, and they did not know how they were

         11  going to engineer it, and they did not know how much

         12  it was going to cost. But, they know they had to do

         13  it.

         14                 One of the issues that Steve just

         15  brought up was the cost of real estate.  If small

         16  businesses knew that they would be saving $1,000 on

         17  their broadband bill every year, they might have a

         18  little bit more money to pay for real estate.  If

         19  middle class families were to save $500 or $600 on

         20  their Verizon, Time- Warner or Cablevision Bills,

         21  they might have a little bit more money to spend on

         22  housing, or on other educational resources for their

         23  kids.

         24                 So, I think that the Professor is

         25  correct, that we need to make sure that the task
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          2  force develops a language to explain this to the

          3  public.

          4                 We have I mean- for the lack of

          5  another metaphor, there is a meteor bearing down on

          6  the City of New York, and we need to put the best

          7  minds together to figure out how to deflect that

          8  meteor because we are about to become a second or

          9  third- tier city.

         10                 MR. MASUR:  I think I just wanted to

         11  amplify in what Andrew had said, I think that his

         12  comparison of providing water, providing power,

         13  those are very apt comparisons, especially with the

         14  difficulty of providing those services is more,

         15  exponentially more, than providing broadband access.

         16

         17                 This is something that we could do,

         18  when you compare it with those services, less

         19  expensively, that would have a huge impact to

         20  drawing new business to New York.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  All right.

         22                 I want to thank each one of you very

         23  much for being here.

         24                 We will incorporate, literally, all

         25  of your suggestions into the material, and we will
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          2  try very hard to get this panel and advisory board

          3  up and running, and in a very timely fashion, and I

          4  think in the end we will be successful.

          5                 MR. RASIEJ:  Thanks, Gale.  Good to

          6  see you.

          7                 MR. MASUR:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Our next panel is Sumanta Ray, Senior

         11  Analyst with Communications Workers of America,

         12  Richard Murphy who is the Executive Director of Food

         13  Change, and Tom Kamber, Chief Executive Officer,

         14  Older Adults Technology Services.

         15                 Who would like to begin?

         16                 MR. RAY:  I will begin.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Go right ahead.

         18                 MR. RAY:  All right, hello.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MR. RAY:  Thank you for giving me the

         22  opportunity to make some comments here today at a

         23  very late--.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  No, that is

         25  okay.
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          2                 And why don't you identify yourself?

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. RAY:  My name is Sumanta Ray.  I

          5  am a Senior Analyst for the Communication Workers of

          6  America, and I have been such for ten years, and I

          7  am a new resident of New York City.  I live in

          8  Brooklyn.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Welcome.

         10                 MR. RAY:  Thank you.

         11                 I am here to testify in support of

         12  forming this task force.  I believe we cannot have

         13  enough task force review of the potential that this

         14  new technology promises, and I am also supporting

         15  this task force because I believe it should have a

         16  very- not a narrow focus- but it should focus on the

         17  provision of providing broadband services to low-

         18  income communities, which I would say is very

         19  different than providing competition.  Because I

         20  think what we have seen is New York City actually

         21  has more competition than many other cities around

         22  the country, and still there are communities that

         23  are underserved.  So just providing competition does

         24  not provide universal service, and I think we have

         25  seen that.
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          2                 When we look around the country, we

          3  see different experiences, city auctions through

          4  access street lamps, a private wireless ISPs,

          5  Denver, here, build wireless infrastructure for

          6  utility service that sells wholesale capacity to

          7  competing retail service, that is past bill

          8  Washington, city contracts with the private

          9  operator, airmesh for turnkey system, that is in

         10  Cerritos, California, city- built operated networks

         11  charging $16.00 a month subscription fee, Chaska,

         12  Minnesota, city provides free wireless and business

         13  to districts in parks to attract foot traffic, that

         14  is in Riverside, California, Long Beach, California

         15  and Washington, D.C., and Spokane, Washington, city-

         16  built network to monitor traffic and control traffic

         17  signals and signs, Pleasanton, California and Las

         18  Vegas, Nevada, city- built network for use by police

         19  providing access to lap tops and PDAs from vehicles

         20  and the street, San Mateo, California, Milpitas,

         21  California, North Miami Beach, Florida, and the list

         22  goes on.

         23                 But what we really have not seen is

         24  while these goals are good, they are good goals,

         25  they are not explicitly focused on providing
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          2  broadband service in low- income communities in the

          3  home, which I believe is what this task force should

          4  make as part of its primary goal where in that way,

          5  will not duplicate other task forces, and it could

          6  have a very explicit focus on that, and we believe

          7  that is really what is necessary.

          8                 I live in a well to do area of

          9  Brooklyn.  It is an area that is served by several

         10  competitors, including EarthLink, that is my ISP

         11  provider, and I would love to pay $10.00 to $20.00

         12  less a month, but I do not know if that is the goal,

         13  the ultimate goal here of providing universal

         14  broadband service to have middle class residents

         15  have a cheaper bill, and despite that, you know I

         16  would like to become a homeowner in this City too,

         17  but I think there are other areas in which the City

         18  should focus its resources.

         19                 We are very concerned that the City

         20  not expend its resources simply on providing a

         21  network that can be then sold wholesale to private

         22  corporations to come in and provide service in areas

         23  at competitive prices where service already exists,

         24  perhaps at slightly higher prices.

         25                 If that were to be the goal, then we
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          2  would have some specific recommendations that would

          3  safeguard the city's investment in that area to

          4  provide a competitive playing field between that

          5  type of service and existing providers.

          6                 Since I am here on behalf of CWA, it

          7  would be remiss for me not to mention some of our

          8  concerns that we have in terms of jobs, and as the

          9  task force looks into these alternatives, even

         10  providing service on their own, we ask that you

         11  consider carefully the type of jobs that would be

         12  developed.

         13                 If the City is in the business of

         14  providing service, how is that going to work?  Who

         15  is going to do the billing functions?  The customer

         16  support functions?  The construction?  The

         17  maintenance, and everything that is actually

         18  required in a full scale operation, the kind that

         19  Philadelphia is talking about?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I mention that

         21  all of the time. Just you make sure that Bob Bester

         22  (phonetic) knows that, thank you.

         23                 MR. RAY:  I will tell him when I get

         24  back to the office.

         25                 So I will just say, we have seen some
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          2  impact, a little impact so far, where these networks

          3  have had on our jobs- we think the potential danger

          4  is low, and if handled properly can be dealt with.

          5                 Up until now WiFi greatest impact on

          6  our jobs have been what the same the thing that the

          7  cordless phone did, basically, a lot less work for-

          8  what the impact has been on the inside wire service,

          9  basically, less inside wire troubles, and so there

         10  is fewer trouble tickets and service orders and so

         11  on, it finally shrinks the demand for installation

         12  repair technicians.

         13                 Again, we believe these are problems

         14  that can be mitigated.

         15                 With respect to Philadelphia, we

         16  believe this is the obviously the most interesting

         17  project, the one that is sort of the most in depth,

         18  but we also have concerns about that, and again, we

         19  are concerned right now that one of the primary

         20  things is that while the project has universal

         21  broadband service as a goal, and lower access prices

         22  or access subsidies for basic access alone is

         23  unlikely to being an effective tool in bridging the

         24  digital divide.

         25                 Presently, digital access requires a
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          2  computer or similar device and requires basic

          3  language, cultural and technical literacy, combined

          4  with the sense that there is something useful to be

          5  gained from accessing the Internet, and these things

          6  are highly correlated with education, income, age,

          7  race and ethnicity.

          8                 So while Philadelphia wireless does

          9  recognize the problem, it does nothing with regard

         10  to how we solve those problems.

         11                 We also ask that while you look at

         12  that, this task force goes the additional step of

         13  looking into that.  And I think the idea of the

         14  barometer is an excellent idea, and I think you

         15  should look into that, and but not again, just rely

         16  solely on competition as the barometer for providing

         17  universal access, and you look at how many people in

         18  these communities that you are targeting are

         19  actually getting service and not simply the level of

         20  competition in existing areas.

         21                 Finally, with regard to the water and

         22  power, there are some things about big capital

         23  intensive projects and there are certain industries

         24  that tend towards national monopoly versus other

         25  industries.  There are no other provider of water
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          2  services, at least right now, although there is the

          3  bottles of water service industry but no last mile

          4  service, if you will, for providing water, and I

          5  would ask that the task force looks at ways to

          6  force, better force, the incumbent carriers here to

          7  provide universal access, and while I realize,

          8  particularly with the telephone industry, much of

          9  the control is at the state PSC level.  There is

         10  significant amount of control that local cities have

         11  over the cable industry, and so we ask that you look

         12  at the as well because you are the franchising

         13  authority there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         15                 MR. RAY:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Tom Kamber

         19                 MR. KAMBER:  Well, I agree with

         20  everything he said.

         21                 I want to begin by thanking Council

         22  Member Brewer and Council Member Sanders for holding

         23  this hearing, and for raising this issue, and it is

         24  an issue that we deal with every day in the non-

         25  profit community.
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          2                 I run a non- profit that helps senior

          3  citizens with computers called Older Adults

          4  Technology Services, and we have been working for

          5  the last year and a half in various neighborhoods in

          6  the City to train senior citizens and get them,

          7  both, to understand about technology, and the

          8  difference it can make in their lives, and also to

          9  begin adopting technology and using it to get access

         10  to the things that they need, such as health care,

         11  financial information, communications with their

         12  relatives and families, and even shopping and

         13  entertainment and news.

         14                 Also before working at OATS, I worked

         15  with One Economy, so we wired buildings for

         16  broadband access in the Bronx, working with Mount

         17  Hope, and I have worked with CSS and Settlement on

         18  similar projects in Brooklyn, and I can tell you

         19  that from my experience now, I think low- income

         20  communities and senior citizens are facing a crisis

         21  in access, and it is the number one issue that we

         22  hear when we are out doing training programs.

         23  People often come to me and say,`I understand that

         24  computers have become much cheaper that I can buy a

         25  computer for as little as $400 or $500 that will do

                                                            99

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  what I need it to do, but I cannot afford to spend

          3  $40, or $50, or $60 a month on an ongoing hit on my

          4  family budget', especially for senior citizens who

          5  have a fixed income- they might have a little bit of

          6  capital built up, but they do not have the monthly

          7  payment to put out, and I am constantly struggling

          8  with that issue with people trying to troubleshoot

          9  it, talking about some of the savings that they do

         10  get from being able to purchase things on- line, and

         11  the time savings as well, but it really comes up

         12  quite regularly as an issue, and it is a major

         13  obstacle to access for people.  And from our point

         14  of view, the benefits for senior citizens, and that

         15  is what I really want to emphasize today, are very

         16  profound and very critical, and I would- to begin

         17  with, I would like support the legislation, which I

         18  think is a great idea, and I am really excited about

         19  it, and I would like you to spend a little bit of

         20  energy, as I know you would have anyways, but we are

         21  here to urge you, focusing on some of these user

         22  groups, particularly senior citizens, low- income

         23  neighborhoods, and others who have special

         24  opportunities that they face with this because

         25  whatever your cost inputs are going to be in this
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          2  program, I think from a senior citizen point of

          3  view, the benefits are very profound and very wide-

          4  reaching.

          5                 To begin with, just speaking briefly

          6  about isolation, which is one of the principle

          7  obstacles and challenges for many senior citizens,

          8  many seniors will not go out and go to the local

          9  senior center or they do not live with family, and

         10  the Internet is one of the principle ways, and e-

         11  mail, for them to overcome isolation and feel like

         12  they are connected if their families are in other

         13  states or other countries.  Very, very critical.

         14                 Health care, I know that you have

         15  mentioned in your briefing papers, is coming up as a

         16  critical issue, it is a fantastic delivery channel,

         17  especially for information, and for eligibility

         18  opportunities for people, things like benefits

         19  checkup, which allow seniors to find out what they

         20  are eligible for, just saves government and non-

         21  profits a lot of time and money, and gets seniors

         22  the quality information that is accurate that they

         23  need on a daily basis.

         24                 So, we are very supportive of this, I

         25  would encourage you just- we noted three things on
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          2  my paper that I am going to hand in for you.  One

          3  is, put somebody on the committee for the commission

          4  that is, at least, attentive to and aware of the

          5  issues associated with the elderly around these

          6  issues who will be a little bit experienced and

          7  knowledgeable about who to talk to and what to do

          8  about it.

          9                 Secondly, to look at special access

         10  opportunities for seniors because we have senior

         11  discounts for movies, we have senior discounts for

         12  all sorts of travel opportunities and things like

         13  that but seniors have not really reached the

         14  critical mass as a group yet to begin demanding this

         15  for the Internet, but they will, and it is going to

         16  happen very soon, and I would like to see this be an

         17  opportunity to try to trigger that a little bit.

         18                 And then finally, just to look at the

         19  needs of seniors, and balance those when you do your

         20  cost benefits analysis on this because I think that

         21  the benefits to seniors are very, very important.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Richard Murphy.

         25                 MR. MURPHY:  Good afternoon, my name
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          2  is Richard Murphy, and I am the Executive Director

          3  of FoodChange, which is a 25- year old organization

          4  dedicated to improving lives through nutrition,

          5  education, and financial empowerment.

          6                 I want to thank the Councilwoman for

          7  having this hearing, and actually--.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  He knows me very

          9  well, so, keep going Murphy.

         10                 MR. MURPHY:  Then if you are going to

         11  start there, I will talk about if you had been Paul

         12  Revere, everyone would have heard in Boston, but

         13  they would not hear now given the lack of broadband.

         14

         15                 I do support, enthusiastically, 625-

         16  A.  I agree that we should have a larger task force.

         17    I want to give you a name of somebody from the

         18  IRS--.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Oh, good idea.

         20                 MR. MURPHY: -- and show the

         21  connection on that, which I will talk about

         22  secondly.

         23                 I love the broadband barometer.

         24                 Why is the important to "a food

         25  organization"? Well, part of the reason we do
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          2  certain of our things is to get people adequate

          3  financial resources so they can buy nutritious food,

          4  and that leads us to do food stamp screening, and

          5  also earned income credit and tax preparation, where

          6  we have done over 40,000 taxes this current calendar

          7  year, for the year 2004, and it is toward that end

          8  that I will just briefly speak on that we have 12

          9  tax sites during tax season across the city.

         10                 The one in the poorest neighbor in

         11  the Bronx, and Hunt's Point causes us the most

         12  problems because we cannot do certain things.  We

         13  cannot- we probably spend twice as much time per tax

         14  form to just complete the tax there because

         15  everything is always breaking down.  We do not have

         16  good wireless connection, we

         17  cannot- we just cannot do the work.

         18                 As a matter of fact, we are toying

         19  with do we even want to have a site there, which is

         20  like- I am almost embarrassed to say it because it

         21  says like you are being doubly penalized, you are

         22  living in a poor neighborhood because you get poor

         23  wages.  We are trying to help you get back

         24  government resources that are there for the taking,

         25  but we cannot actually do it in your neighborhood as
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          2  other people can get it done in their neighborhood

          3  or in their home because we do not have the

          4  connection, and it is very real, and we are really-

          5  and that is why this really hit home.

          6                 I want to just leave with the

          7  question, or just end with the question, and I have

          8  got longer testimony that I will not bore you with

          9  now, except that, how are we going to get the two

         10  million poor New Yorkers for whom this impacts more

         11  than anyone else?

         12                 I think the pipes analogy is really

         13  good because I started out working in the Bronx,

         14  writing up case histories of people having dirty

         15  water in their pipes, and I realize now those same

         16  people are now having another pipe analogy, or a

         17  lack thereof. And I might add that the schools do

         18  not have, as we know, in the poorer the

         19  neighborhood, they actually do not have water that

         20  they can drink most high schools, in most schools in

         21  poor neighborhoods or they have been turned off for

         22  various reasons.

         23                 I think it behooves organizations

         24  like FoodChange to really start organizing people

         25  around some of this, and using some of the analogies
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          2  we heard earlier comparing to Bangladesh and,

          3  ironically, since in some parts in India they are

          4  doing our food stamp screening or state food stamp

          5  screening, and work that we really- because they are

          6  set up better technologically, that we really have

          7  to think of framing this, and there was mention

          8  about having a communications person on the

          9  committee.  Maybe it is more an advertising person

         10  to- I mean, it is a communications person, but

         11  somebody who can really crystallize what this means

         12  to the two million poor people, and in the

         13  broadbanding barometer, we should include the 1,300

         14  schools because we are in Park West High School and

         15  Lord, we cannot get what we should get there, nor

         16  can the students, especially for those who work in

         17  the basement.  I mean, you can start seeing it go

         18  down, so, there is a lot of- and I just will make

         19  that commitment from our organization to think of

         20  how we can bring this to other organizations to

         21  frame the issue as a real poor person's issue, and

         22  so I am really excited to have heard that in the

         23  discussion.

         24                 So, thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

                                                            106

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  much.

          3                 What is helpful is it is always, as I

          4  indicated earlier, hard to get the demand side.

          5                 MR. MURPHY:  Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You speak for

          7  the seniors, who speak obviously in terms of some of

          8  the low- income communities, and you are speaking in

          9  terms of those who need benefits, and we can do that

         10  because we are familiar with what broadband can

         11  bring.  But it is very difficult when you are not,

         12  sort of, as expert as you are or knowing what is

         13  available to get others to feel the same way.      So

         14  , I think that would be another aspect of a task

         15  force would be to do the barometer kinds of

         16  discussions.  Like you said, low- income

         17  communities, this is what you could be getting if

         18  you were able to access, and this is what our goal

         19  is, and look how small the graph is in terms of your

         20  connectivity at this time.

         21                 So, that would also be part of the

         22  project, would be to develop some demand where there

         23  is not one right now because it is hard to affect

         24  policy if nobody is asking for it.  It is very

         25  difficult.
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          2                 MR. MURPHY:  One point I did not

          3  make, just between food stamps and EITC, this city

          4  is easily loosing a billion dollars in unclaimed

          5  federal dollars each year.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And you have

          7  done a great job on trying to close that gap.

          8                 MR. MURPHY:  I mean, we have gotten

          9  up to like $70 million we have claimed this year,

         10  but it is still like the tip of the iceberg.

         11                 So for your panel you might want an

         12  economist who is talking about- I mean I know that

         13  if we had broadbanding, it certainly would get $200

         14  million more just more easily.  We could be more

         15  efficient.  We know what we can do now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, okay, and

         17  I just want to address the labor issues.  I just

         18  want to be clear that I have made that part of every

         19  discussion in terms of the issue of anybody who is

         20  thinking about providing service that we have to be

         21  very careful about throwing the baby out with the

         22  bath water in terms of your amazing workers at CWA,

         23  and the knowledge that they have, not to mention the

         24  wage issue.  So I just want be- I feel very strongly

         25  about that.
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          2                 All right, thank you all very much.

          3                 MR. MURPHY:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  If we had more

          5  time, I would ask more questions but I am worried

          6  about time.

          7                 Thank you so much for making the

          8  effort to being here today.

          9                 Last panel, Lara Tilmanis from Intel,

         10  Lou Slaughter from GigaBeam, Joe Plotkin,

         11  NYCwireless, Dave Burstein from DSL Prime, and Jay

         12  Sulzberger.

         13                 Would you like to begin?  Go right

         14  ahead.  Who would like to begin?

         15                 Lara do you want to begin?

         16                 MS. TILMANIS:  Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         18                 MS. TILMANIS:  Good afternoon,

         19  Council Member Brewer.

         20                 I have here today to read a statement

         21  of Paul Butcher.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Why don't you

         23  introduce yourself and just pull the microphone a

         24  little bit towards you because we do want to hear

         25  what you have to say, we appreciate your being here,
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          2  thanks.

          3                 MS. TILMANIS:  Sure, good morning

          4  Council Member Brewer.

          5                 I am Lara Tilmanis with Intel

          6  Corporation.  I am a marketing manager.

          7                 I am here today to read a statement

          8  of Paul Butcher who is a marketing manager and the

          9  strategy lead for state and local government for

         10  Intel America's.

         11                 Paul's statement is following:

         12                 First I would like to thank the

         13  Committee members for the Technology in Government

         14  for inviting Intel Corporation to contribute

         15  testimony regarding the role of New York City

         16  government, in promoting the availability of

         17  affordable broadband to all residents, non- profits

         18  and businesses in New York City.

         19                 In reviewing your requests for

         20  comment, I want to first acknowledge that your query

         21  is appropriate and that you are asking the right

         22  questions.  During the course of your investigation,

         23  it will be helpful to develop a firm opinion about

         24  the current, near term and future of broadband

         25  technology, spectrum use, business models, and your
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          2  cities role in each phase.

          3                 New standards- based wireless

          4  technologies couple with the enabling forces of

          5  large scale silicon manufacturing are contributing

          6  toward a paradigm shift.  Our current assumptions

          7  about the deployment of broadband are undergoing

          8  significant changes, the implications of which, we

          9  can only begin to imagine. Wireless broadband not

         10  only enables mobile computing in the form of

         11  thousands of new usage models, but this shift is

         12  drastically changing our long standing assumptions

         13  about the costs associated in delivering computing

         14  content and tools to individuals.

         15                 As with all new technologies, there

         16  are early adopters.  Cities around the world are

         17  lading in the adoption of new wireless technologies

         18  like WiFi- Mesh and WiMax.  The reasons are simple.

         19  Public officials realize that broadband enables

         20  individuals to participate equally in our economy,

         21  pursue education and enable better access to

         22  government services.

         23                 Increasingly, broadband is becoming

         24  an essential component of our lives.  Most people

         25  that have come to appreciate the benefits of
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          2  broadband, will testify that broadband enables them

          3  to operate their small businesses, complete school

          4  work, research purchase decisions or telecommute

          5  from a home office rather than driving to work.

          6                 While the range of perceptions vary,

          7  there is belief among many public officials, that

          8  broadband is not being deployed in geographic areas

          9  which are considered economically challenged or in

         10  geographic areas, and among populations that are on

         11  the fringe of private sector ROI; thus the

         12  escalating concerns about the digital divide.  The

         13  multitudes of cities deploying broadband represent a

         14  grass roots movement which seeks to ensure faster

         15  deployment of broadband to all citizens, and to

         16  encourage more affordable service by fostering

         17  multiple competitors.

         18                 The following are responses to the

         19  key questions asked by the Committee:

         20                 Are there particular values,

         21  principles and/or requirements that should guide the

         22  Commission's work?

         23                 Access to broadband in and of itself

         24  will not accomplish the real change pursued by this

         25  committee.  More e- mail and more web browsing is
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          2  not what this world needs.  If this commission

          3  focuses solely on providing access, free access or

          4  more affordable access, the promise and the

          5  potential of your work will not be realized.

          6                 Real change, which will benefit

          7  everyone, will only occur if there is an emphasis on

          8  tools that enable efficient and effective

          9  government, tools that enable citizens, foster

         10  business and economic health, focus on the tools for

         11  the fireman or police officer which will ensure

         12  their safety, enable parents to collaborate easily

         13  from anywhere with teachers to ensure the success of

         14  their children, monitor and control devices like

         15  parking and utility meters, allow contractors to

         16  collect their pay more quickly because your building

         17  inspectors update records from the construction

         18  site, save lives, by deploying tools that relay

         19  vitals from an accident scene to your emergency room

         20  doctors.

         21                 What technologies should the

         22  Commission look at?

         23                 In terms of a network infrastructure,

         24  that would support the entirety of New York City, no

         25  single technology will suffice.  Fiber, cable, power
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          2  lines, 100Mbps, Ethernet, Gigabit Ethernet,

          3  microwave, Canopy, WiFi- Mesh, Pre- WiFiMax, WiMax,

          4  et cetera, these are all technologies that may be

          5  part of a proposed network.  It would be too

          6  simplistic to recommend, for example, that New York

          7  should consider a two- tiered network with WiMax

          8  providing backhaul to WiFi- Mesh devices mounted on

          9  light poles for street level access to Intel

         10  Centrino laptops.  A thorough analysis which first

         11  identifies the purpose and tools which utilize the

         12  network, and then the technology capabilities

         13  required to meet those needs, will adequately answer

         14  the question of which technologies should be

         15  considered.  But the future network upgrades

         16  required, both to support greater uptake, and

         17  greater overall capabilities, must also be an

         18  important consideration.

         19                 What kinds of policies should the

         20  Commission consider?

         21                 The following points by Peter Pitsch

         22  (phonetic), Director Communications policy for Intel

         23  Corporation, were first shared in February as

         24  testimony regarding Texas House Bill 789, which

         25  sought to erect barriers to municipal networks.
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          2                 Municipalities that determine there

          3  is an unmet need ban find solutions that are open,

          4  transparent and reasonably competitively neutral.

          5  Some promising cooperative efforts between

          6  municipalities and multiple private sector partners

          7  already exist or are underway.

          8                 Presumptively, municipalities must

          9  follow common sense guidelines designed to promote

         10  competitive neutrality.  For example, they must

         11  first assess unmet needs, underserved areas, and

         12  future requirements.  This might involve working

         13  with a private sector consulting firm.  They should

         14  use an open, competitive bid process to determine

         15  the best- suited technology and provider. Private

         16  sector new entrants, established firms and existing

         17  facilities, and out- of- region established firms

         18  should be free to bid on the service provision and

         19  network operational requirements as they see fit.

         20  Also, municipal efforts should not get preferred

         21  right of access or way of other favored treatment.

         22                 Because circumstances vary, however,

         23  statewide blanket prescriptions are unwise.  Some

         24  municipalities may find private sector partners are

         25  able to provide all of their services. Others may
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          2  find that private partners are able to provide some,

          3  but not all, of the services they require.  Still

          4  others because of their small size or remote

          5  location, may not find any private sector partners

          6  willing to provide their service.  The key is that

          7  municipalities use open and neutral processes to

          8  determine the private sector involvement.

          9                 In summary, Intel supports allowing

         10  municipalities to pursue network solutions that are

         11  arrived at through open processes and are reasonably

         12  competitively neutral.  We believe that framework

         13  encourages public/private partnerships that could

         14  advance the goal of making affordable and high

         15  quality broadband available to all Americans.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Can you begin to

         17  sum up because we have your wonderful testimony?

         18                 MS. TILMANIS:  I guess I would just

         19  sum up his statements by saying that the focus

         20  should be on the primary drivers for the broadband

         21  communications infrastructure, and focus on the

         22  usage models.

         23                 I think some of the key points that

         24  Paul wanted to make today is that the participants

         25  on your commission should focus on the end- users so
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          2  the committee should include public safety

          3  officials, health care, the people who will actually

          4  be using and utilizing the network for services.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I totally agree,

          7  and thank you very much.  We will make sure that

          8  everything that you brought to us today is included

          9  in the record.

         10                 Thank you very much, I appreciate it.

         11                 Who would like to go next?  Joe,

         12  okay.

         13                 MR. PLOTKIN:  My name is Joe Plotkin.

         14    I am here on behalf of NYCwireless.  We are a non-

         15  profit organization that advocates for, and enables

         16  the growth of free, public wireless networks.

         17                 I want to thank Gale Brewer for

         18  holding these hearings, and Bruce for all of his

         19  cooperation.

         20                 I want to talk a little bit about

         21  NYCwireless has done some of- some similar

         22  deployments that I think can be a model for- as we

         23  look to serving underserved communities with

         24  municipal broadband.

         25                 Moreover, on the roadmap for this
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          2  broadband task force, I think it is important, I am

          3  sure everybody has said here today, that you be

          4  forward- looking, that you examine all technologies,

          5  that you examine the difficult problems of the

          6  legacy duopoly of last- mile infrastructure that we

          7  currently have for wire line.  That you explore the

          8  economic impact of limited access in underserved

          9  communities, and importantly, and I do not know if

         10  this has been mentioned before but I think an

         11  important component of this task force would be to

         12  have a public education and awareness campaign about

         13  these issues and why, in order to build a

         14  constituency, if the municipal broadband rollout is

         15  to go forward. Without people understanding these

         16  issues, it would be difficult to get this thing

         17  built.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I agree,

         19  absolutely.

         20                 MR. PLOTKIN:  And again, some of the

         21  justifications; connects underserved areas, it also

         22  creates ubiquitous access throughout New York City,

         23  which is good for all competitive- for our economic

         24  competitiveness, and also as I am sure other people

         25  have mentioned, there will be new applications that
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          2  the city government should look at to serve

          3  constituents more efficiently, to create new

          4  services, whether that is police, or transportation,

          5  or whatever.  And then finally, the critics of some

          6  of the municipal broadband initiatives, often funded

          7  by the incumbent Bell Companies, in places like

          8  Philadelphia, my answer to them is what I call

          9  the`public library analogy'.

         10                 So let me just cruise through this in

         11  the interest of time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  If you could,

         13  that would be great.

         14                 MR. PLOTKIN:  I think it is really

         15  critical that you look out at least three years, and

         16  build and understand that this is not- this will

         17  forever be an ongoing development.  You will need an

         18  evolutionary path that has to look at least 2015 and

         19  beyond.  So, do not lock in on any technology.  Do

         20  not lock in on any one solution, especially as it

         21  relates to the year the task force is operating in.

         22                 We all agree that connectivity is an

         23  indispensable component of business today, and

         24  rapidly becoming essential for everybody in modern

         25  society.  Very simply, either you are connected to
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          2  the world, or you are not.  Even right now, we can

          3  think of the tremendous disadvantages if you are not

          4  connected.  Not having opportunities to find an

          5  apartment or a job or save money by finding bargains

          6  on eBay or Craigslist or Expedia, or selling your

          7  used furniture or researching merchant reputations.

          8                 It is important to recognize that we

          9  can now see that the Internet is unquestionably a

         10  participatory medium, so that anything that hinders

         11  this participation will be detrimental to economic

         12  growth, innovation, social cohesion.

         13                 One of the big problems as I said

         14  before, is that market forces are insufficient to

         15  deliver ubiquity and full coverage due to private

         16  control of the communications infrastructure on the

         17  wire- line side.

         18                 In my testimony, you can read it all

         19  but basically, the Bell Companies have had a hundred

         20  years to build their networks.  They have rights-

         21  of- way in the City, as I know you explored in prior

         22  hearings that go back to the 1800's.  So therefore,

         23  it is not easy for competitors to launch other

         24  services. Consequently, there is a role for

         25  government here.
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          2                 I use an analogy to the U.S. Highway

          3  system, for some reason it is as if we let the

          4  concrete contractor control the roads and decide

          5  what kind of cars can ride on it.  That is an

          6  essential component in the rational for examining

          7  why the role of municipalities in providing access

          8  in services.

          9                 Another major limitation is

         10  asymmetric deployments. Both the cable systems and

         11  the Verizon- based systems are asymmetric, meaning

         12  much more bandwidth downstream than upstream. This

         13  is going to be- is already a limitation but it is

         14  going to be increasingly a bigger limitation as we

         15  move to symmetric applications, like voice- over IP,

         16  videoconferencing, file- sharing. Collaborative

         17  work, and so on.

         18                 So again, the bottom line is I think

         19  the public needs to be made aware that the market

         20  forces are not sufficient in this case, and so there

         21  is a roll for government.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You need to wrap

         23  up, Joe, if you can.

         24                 MR. PLOTKIN:  And so, that brings me

         25  to the answer to the critics who will say, "you are
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          2  interfering in private enterprise", and I say- I use

          3  the public library analogy, having public libraries

          4  does not, does not, take away sales from Barnes and

          5  Noble, in fact, it provides a larger base of readers

          6  by providing books to people who cannot afford them

          7  today.  It gives those people the tools to improve

          8  their situation to the point where someday they will

          9  be buying books at Barnes and Noble.  It also

         10  increases- it also is a benefit to society at large.

         11                 Consequently, I see a similar role

         12  for municipal wireless providing underserved areas,

         13  providing access in public locations so you can have

         14  ubiquitous anywhere, anytime access, and also

         15  developing new applications that will help you

         16  create new services and serve your constituents to

         17  be more effective.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Who would like to go next?

         21                 MR. SLAUGHTER:  Councilwoman Brewer,

         22  gentlemen, thank you for having me again today.  I

         23  am really honored to speak before you.  I will make

         24  my presentation short, as time is short.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.
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          2                 MR. SLAUGHTER:  The broadband

          3  initiative, I welcome it.

          4                 I think the task force should

          5  definitely be created. I recommend that you do

          6  modify the mission to spell out that you should look

          7  at alternative technologies. More specifically, 70

          8  and 80 gigahertz, which are rules that I pioneered

          9  through the FCC. They represent 15 percent of this

         10  countries authorized spectrum, and I think it is

         11  important that these alternative technologies be

         12  sought out because what I see happening in telecom,

         13  and I just came away from the Supercom Conference

         14  over the last three days.

         15                 The focus, the companies that are

         16  making money today are the ones looking at the

         17  physical layer of the infrastructure. Ever since the

         18  last telecom bubble went south, there has not been a

         19  lot of attention to the infrastructure.  You have

         20  got the Seallex (phonetic) scrambling to and make

         21  money being consumed, putting out of business.  You

         22  have got the Ilex (phonetic) consolidating.  You

         23  have got a whole layer of fragmented service

         24  providers coming into play.  Those are the types of

         25  folks who will put in WiFi but the whole central
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          2  infrastructure play, the wireless infrastructure,

          3  that overlays a city, has to be focused on it.

          4                 I think that is where New York City

          5  Council can play a big part to facilitate the

          6  infrastructure, and allow the WiFi hot spots and the

          7  coming age of WiMax.

          8                 I think the task force should include

          9  expertise from the wireless private sector.  One

         10  year is definitely adequate but I would urge you to

         11  put in pilot programs and parallel.  The technology

         12  is moving so rapidly.  When you walk around Supercom

         13  and see all the technologies that out there, it is

         14  scary.  What is viable today, will be displaced in

         15  about a year.

         16                 And if I could underscore my point, I

         17  am going to fast forward in my handout to a WiFiber

         18  solution.  You have heard of WiFi, you have heard of

         19  WiMax.  All of these technologies need some sort of

         20  backhaul, and more specifically if you look at New

         21  York as an example, you have heard of WiMax?  You

         22  have got all of these WiMax circles.  WiMax has

         23  three applications; point to point, point to multi-

         24  point mobile, and point to multi- point fixed.  So

         25  if you deploy WiMax throughout Queens and Brooklyn,
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          2  the problem WiMax has is you will have several

          3  hundred megabit WiMax cells that need to be

          4  backhauled, and that is the physical layer that is

          5  trying to be addressed by the telecom companies and

          6  government's like yourself, government bodies, and

          7  that should be the focus.

          8                 You have the CEO's of Ilex talking

          9  about fiber to the curb.  Well, I say dreamers talk

         10  about fiber to the curb, the visionaries talk about

         11  high- speed access for everybody, at an affordable

         12  price.

         13                 I think that is the challenge that

         14  you are faced with in the City Council.  Putting in

         15  the infrastructure, wireless is the alternative, it

         16  is not fiber, and then you facilitate this growing

         17  fragmented group of WiFi, non- profit, for profit

         18  folks that will bank on your infrastructure.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Dave Burstein, I believe you are

         23  next.

         24                 Thank you for being here.

         25                 MR. BURSTEIN:  Thank you for having
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          2  this hearing because we are sitting in a room full

          3  of people who are willing to work damn hard for

          4  important goals.  Very few people have stuck their

          5  neck out to the extent that you have.  Obviously,

          6  nobody in New York has done the kind of work you

          7  have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Everybody is

          9  helping, thanks.

         10                 MR. BURSTEIN:  People like David

         11  Eisenburg respected it by being here today.  David

         12  is probably the most important intellectual on the

         13  Internet, certainly on the network in the United

         14  States and possibly in the world, certainly in the

         15  English speaking world.  He is remarkable, and the

         16  fact that he came shows how much people care and

         17  want you to succeed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         19                 MR. BURSTEIN:  On the other hand, I

         20  have been reporting on Telecom, which is what I do

         21  for the last five years, and watched an abysmal

         22  failure on the part of the United States that I

         23  certainly do not want to see duplicated here in my

         24  hometown of New York.

         25                 Five years ago, we were the leader in
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          2  the Internet, we were the leader in broadband.  We

          3  are now a poor also ran.  New York City just had a

          4  task force report that said we are leading amongst

          5  our piers, in fact, Tokyo, Paris, and soon London

          6  and Berlin, are far ahead of us.  It is simply

          7  untrue.

          8                 At this point you have probably have

          9  a million households able to get fiber in greater

         10  Tokyo.  We are also behind Hicksville.  Hicksville

         11  is getting fiber put in very rapidly because Verizon

         12  choose to build Hicksville before they built

         13  Brooklyn, Queens, or Manhattan.

         14                 So, we are falling behind and one of

         15  the reasons we are falling behind is we have a

         16  national government, which I do not happen to

         17  support, that believes in doing as little as

         18  possible and allowing the private sector to resolve

         19  the problems, and that does not always work.  They

         20  also believe, anything Bill Kannard (phonetic) to a

         21  certain extent believed as a Democrat, that

         22  government is unlikely to be able to solve these

         23  problems and hence, did not do very much except

         24  create a climate.

         25                 I would like to suggest it is
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          2  possible actually to move forward and accomplish

          3  stuff towards the three goals that you have today;

          4  getting New York an extraordinary fast broadband,

          5  getting it affordable, and getting it universal.

          6                 The first thing I am going to suggest

          7  is that we think outside the process of the usual

          8  government policy, meetings, bills, committee's and

          9  hearings, and instead think about getting something

         10  done.

         11                 Frankly, I have just watched a

         12  Committee to which came out of some work done by

         13  your folks years ago, come through with a report

         14  that said and did nothing, and hearing that we are

         15  going to get another committee is somehow just not

         16  exciting to me, no matter what the intentions are.

         17                 Imagine if instead our Mayor

         18  said,`Larry Babio (phonetic) come in, we have got to

         19  figure out how to solve New York's problems' and

         20  actually do it.  Okay, Larry Babio of Verizon is

         21  smart as hell, hard working as hell, is a business

         22  man who wants to make money, and actually knows he

         23  can best make money by giving great service to his

         24  customers.  Verizon's fiber- build is probably the

         25  most advanced network, large network, in the world,
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          2  it is going from B- pond to G- pond, which is four

          3  times faster.  It is going to be faster even than

          4  what they are doing in Japan and Korea.

          5                 First way hence, getting to universal

          6  a key goal. Again as I said, we had a report of a

          7  committee that felt like doing nothing, and it came

          8  out and said I quote, "New York City has achieved

          9  nearly universal deployment of competing broadband

         10  technologies."  Later on it said, "according to

         11  Verizon, 85 to 90 percent of all telephone lines in

         12  the City."

         13                 Well, 85 to 90 percent in a City of

         14  eight million people mean a million people here

         15  cannot get broadband.  That is not universal

         16  service.  That is not universal service, and that is

         17  not acceptable.

         18                 So, I asked Verizon vive- president,

         19  Eric Grabe (phonetic) how we would get to the

         20  remaining people, and he wrote and I put this on the

         21  record in an e- mail, "we deployed DSL as quickly as

         22  we can, even while we are doing fiber, it is in our

         23  interest to make the needed changes as quickly as we

         24  can, and we continue to work at that."  But I do not

         25  know anybody at a high level in New York City who
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          2  has gone to the folks at Verizon and said, "okay,

          3  how do we get to these million people- you need this

          4  in your remote terminals, you need this in

          5  repeaters, where is our action plan to do?"  What

          6  you are happy to say is in your interest and you

          7  want to do.

          8                 Second, fast, a world- class system-

          9  it turns out that the best way to get a world- class

         10  fiber system to New York, which is the high end, not

         11  the low end affordable, is to persuade Verizon to do

         12  in New York City what they happen to be doing in

         13  Nassau County.  That is a remarkable realization for

         14  somebody who believes in openness, public worth and

         15  so on.

         16                 Verizon is actually building a pretty

         17  good network. How do we get them to build it in New

         18  York?  They will but they might build it in New York

         19  in 2012, and in Long Island in 2006 if we do not do

         20  anything about it.  So we have to give incentives to

         21  Larry Babio to decide New York City comes first, and

         22  the first thing is to ask him.  Go directly to him,

         23  not through fourth- level, indirect comments and

         24  press but to ask for Larry Babio or somebody at that

         25  level to come in and figure out how we will do it.
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          2                 The second thing is, you make it

          3  clear he has no choice, and the easy way to do that

          4  is to say our goal is to have a very fast, wonderful

          5  broadband for New York, and may we have a proposal?

          6  Verizon, Time- Warner, Deutsche Telekom, Intel,

          7  SISCO, and everybody else.  Now what will come out

          8  of that, which has been done for example to get

          9  fiber to every poor illiterate village in

         10  AndhraPradesh, with 60 million people, most of them

         11  poor, that incidentally was responded to by nine

         12  folks including the two local telcos., and a big

         13  multi- national ta- ta, one of the two largest

         14  companies that took the bid at a fraction of the

         15  cost.

         16                 If we turned out and said we want

         17  proposals for the fiber, I suspect that Verizon

         18  would find a reason to put New York City at the top

         19  of their list, and that is probably the most

         20  practical way.

         21                 Last thing that we did not say, that

         22  I care about because there is a lot of children

         23  going to bed hungry every night whose family cannot

         24  afford $35.00 for their Internet service.  I had it

         25  back and forth with Eric about what affordable
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          2  means.  We all can judge that, and you can judge

          3  that better than I or Eric Grabe, what is affordable

          4  to a family in the Bronx.

          5                 What I can tell you again is the way

          6  to get that, is not merely say we want affordable,

          7  but to ask for a concrete plan. EarthLink here is a

          8  multi- billion dollar company, well, not a multi-

          9  billion dollar company, EarthLink is a company with

         10  5 million subscribers and the ability to do New York

         11  City in four or five years as he has outlined, and

         12  he told me`on the record', that he is bullish on it,

         13  and he wants to work with you and it is practical.

         14  I want him to put that bid out there because I know

         15  if he put that bid out there, so would Verizon, so

         16  would Time- Warner, and so might some other

         17  interesting people.

         18                 So, let me close and I thank you for

         19  the generous amount of time you have given me, by

         20  saying that of course the process is important, but

         21  saying what is the goal, and going right for it,

         22  that we know it is practical, that Philadelphia does

         23  it, Hicksville does it, Paris does it, Tokyo does

         24  it, and bloody well, I want it in my house on 119th

         25  Street and in my friends house in Bushwick.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          3  much, that was great.

          4                 I think Jay is next.

          5                 MR. SULZBERGER:  I will be fast.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Jay is next.

          7                 MR. SULZBERGER:  Thanks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You do not have

          9  to move, Jay, just pull up a chair.

         10                 MR. SULZBERGER:  My name is Jay

         11  Sulzberger.  I am Corresponding Secretary of LXNY,

         12  which is New York's free software organization.  I

         13  am also a working member of New Yorkers for Fair

         14  Use.

         15                 Okay, I agree with all the anti-

         16  monopoly statements. I agree with all the statements

         17  about you can actually rent the poles, you should be

         18  able to make money in this thing actually.

         19  Shockingly enough, I am about to agree with the, to

         20  me, frightening suggestions of Dave Burstein, which

         21  of course, why should we reward Verizon who has

         22  prevented, naturally, the spread of fast broadband

         23  because they do not want to let anybody else in.   Okay

         24  , but I realize there is something that the City can

         25  do on anything, any proposal, whether you get New
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          2  York City Wireless and give them a little help, and

          3  they wire up the City, or whether you put it out for

          4  bid to Verizon, and this is what I had planned to

          5  say anyway but I was, as I say, surprised to realize

          6  that it also applies to Dave Burstein's surprising

          7  suggestions.

          8                 How do you draw your contract?  Joe

          9  Plotkin mentioned some of this stuff.

         10                 What exactly do you want to provide?

         11  You want to provide an asymmetrical, crippled system

         12  designed to persuade people to buy things they

         13  probably do not need, or do you want to provide them

         14  with equal access for all, do not treat it

         15  asymmetrically, there are not producers of content

         16  and consumers.           I am not a consumer, I am

         17  an owner of a computer, I have a host on the Net,

         18  and so I stand equal to Time- Warner at the formal

         19  level.  I am equally a publisher.  I do not make as

         20  much money at it, but I think that this is something

         21  the City Council itself- this should not be off-

         22  loaded to any bunch of experts.              The

         23  City Council itself should specify that anything it

         24  does, it should be without discrimination with

         25  regard to ports being open or closed, and it should
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          2  also be without discrimination as to operating

          3  system that is being run or equipment.  What the

          4  City wants to help with is providing Internet

          5  connections straight up, to every human being in

          6  this City, at a price they can afford.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          9  much.  I certainly agree.

         10                 New Yorkers for Parks, I just want to

         11  mention submitted testimony, unable to join us in

         12  support of the task force, and they talked about it,

         13  as Joe knows, in terms of their park usage and the

         14  need for connectivity in the parks.

         15                 It is getting late, otherwise I would

         16  spend quite a bit of time.

         17                 I do want to say that your

         18  suggestions are all extremely good.  We are very

         19  serious about what we are doing.  It is everything

         20  from moving quickly, as Dave Burstein suggested, not

         21  taking a long road.  I did think that- I tried to

         22  work cooperatively but I do think that the

         23  Administration's suggestion, the two to five years

         24  is too long, and that there are some real workers in

         25  this room and in this community, thinking generally
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          2  about people who want to make something happen.  As

          3  somebody who, I think we all agree, cares

          4  desperately about those who do not have access, that

          5  would be far too long to wait.

          6                 So, we are going to try the best we

          7  can to move quickly to work with all the different

          8  carriers, with some of the people who have brought

          9  some new suggestions, and to make a- not a task

         10  force that is meeting for the sake of meeting, but

         11  very quickly goes to the point of actual

         12  connectivity and real RFP's, real goals, as quickly

         13  as possible.

         14                 I am being general but I am not being

         15  general in terms of making things happen so that

         16  there is a city that we can be proud of, and not

         17  17th on any scale, which was described earlier in

         18  terms of New York.

         19                 It is not easy to do this because you

         20  have to make sure that you are working with all

         21  parties, otherwise it will just be rhetoric, and

         22  that is what I do not want.

         23                 So, I really make a commitment to

         24  you, much thanks to Bruce Lai, the Policy Analyst

         25  and to Fredy Kaplan who is the Counsel to the
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          2  Committee, that we are very serious about what we

          3  are doing.  But I also want to say how much I

          4  appreciate the input of people because this is a

          5  small community, even though we may be large in the

          6  number of people we reach, it is a very small

          7  community in terms of, at least in New York, the

          8  people who are involved.

          9                 So, I really rely on your expertise

         10  and input and I will give back in terms of letting

         11  you know that we are serious about doing this, and

         12  we will move very quickly.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 This hearing is adjourned, thank you.

         15                 (Hearing adjourned 12:55 p.m.)
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